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About Us
ABOUT INDIGO SHIRE
Indigo Shire is located in Victoria’s picturesque North
East and borders the Murray River and the Australian
Alps. Indigo is renowned for its natural beauty and
historic towns. Thousands of tourists visit the area
each year to sample our food and wine and visit our
many well-known festivals and events.
Industry in Indigo is mainly rural in nature, including
agriculture, viticulture and horticulture. There are
over 750 separate businesses based in the Shire
(excluding agribusinesses). Two operations each
providing employment to more than 100 people
are Murray Goulburn Co-operative, major producer
of dairy products in Kiewa, and Uncle Tobys,
manufacturer of cereals and health food products, in
Wahgunyah.
Tourism has an important place in the economic,
social and cultural life of our Shire, which has
Australia's most significant collection of historic
towns. Our natural environment is also part of our
tourism offer - the unspoilt corners of the shire like
Wahgunyah on the Murray River and Upper Sandy
Creek in the Kiewa Valley, the giant granite outcrops
around Chiltern and Beechworth and the national
parks.
Our people are actively involved in their communities.
Over 300 residents volunteer with Council services
such as our libraries, Meals on Wheels, community
cars and community-based meals and Visitor
Information Centres, and there is strong and
passionate representation on sporting facility
Committees of Management, Advisory Committees
and other Council committees.
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BORDERS
Indigo Shire shares a border with the municipalities
of Wodonga, Wangaratta, Towong, Alpine and Moira
Shire Councils.

TOWNSHIPS AND AREAS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Kiewa-Tangambalanga
Stanley
Wahgunyah
Yackandandah
Barnawartha
Brimin
Carlyle
Cornishtown
Indigo Valley
Lilliput
Osbornes Flat
Staghorn Flat
Huon
Charleroi
Upper Sandy Creek

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Beechworth
Rutherglen
Chiltern
Allans Flat
Browns Plains
Bruarong
Chiltern Valley
Gundowring
Kergunyah
Norong
Sandy Creek
Wooragee
Barnawartha North
Silver Creek
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Wahgunyah
Rutherglen
Barnawartha
Chiltern

Kiewa-Tangambalanga

Yackandandah
Beechworth
Stanley

SNAPSHOT
Location

270km north east of Melbourne

Region

North East Victoria

Area

2,040 sq km

Length of roads

1,463km

Est. 2012 population

15,377 (Source: ABS Regional Population Growth)

Properties {Total}

8649

$2.73 billion (Capital Improved Value)

Properties {Rateable}

8288

$2.64 billion (Capital Improved Value)

Voters

12,867 (VEC)

Number of businesses

1,735 (Source: ABS Business Counts – includes agribusiness)

Number of councillors

7

Budget Total

$25.83 million

Rate Revenue

$12.94 million

Employees

131 (EFT)

Economic activity across the Shire has been strong with the value of planning and building
permits increasing from $32,761,686 last year to $41,614,909.24 over the past year.
Planning Permits determined 260
Indigo Shire Surveyor

$21,639,862

54 Commercial permits		

Value

$4,370,134.90

189 Domestic permits		

Value

$13,024,194.04

					Total

$17,394,328.94

Private Building Surveyors

16 Commercial permits		

Value

$2,876,843.30

132 Domestic permits		

Value

$21,343,737.00

					Total

$24,220,580.30

TOTAL

391 Permits				$41,614,909.24
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MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR
CR BERNARD GAFFNEY
At the Statutory meeting of Council in November,
2013, I was elected Mayor and Councillor Peter
Croucher, Deputy Mayor. In December, 2013, the
Council Chief Executive Officer, Brendan McGrath
announced he had been the successful candidate for
the vacant position of Chief Executive Officer at the
Rural City of Wangaratta. It is important to recognise
Brendan's achievements over six years as CEO at
Indigo Shire. Brendan left the organisation in a sound
financial position and was highly regarded by Council.
Council appointed the General Manager Corporate
Services, Greg Pinkerton, to the role of Acting CEO.
Greg stepped up to the role with gusto and the
organisation rallied to support him in that role. After
an exhaustive recruitment process Council appointed
a Director at Moreland Council, Gerry Smith, as the
Chief Executive Officer. Gerry commenced in that
position on June 2, 2014.

ADVOCACY
In December, 2013, the CEO and I met with the
State Minister for the Environment, Ryan Smith,
and the Deputy Premier, Peter Ryan, to present
a case for Indigo for infrastructure, tourism and
economic development grants going forward. Certain
undertakings were agreed to, with announcements
being made in 2014-15. These have included at
least $2 million for Lake Sambell in Beechworth
and $0.5 million for Rutherglen’s Lake King. Further
announcements in 2014-15 are expected to reach
a total of in excess of $5 million. It is important to
recognise the effort of our two local State Government
representatives Bill Tilley and Tim McCurdy in securing
these grants.
In June I travelled to Canberra and met with the
Deputy Prime Minister Warren Truss to again advocate
for various projects on behalf of Indigo Shire.

This meeting has put
Indigo Shire in the
minds of key decision
makers, and could
not have been held
without the assistance
of Victorian Senator
Bridget McKenzie.
Over the past
financial year, we have continued to deliver improved
community infrastructure and services in a financially
sound manner. Managing these requirements in the
face of continued cost shifting remains a difficult task.

PARTNERSHIPS
The partnerships we form with our community are
valued and appreciated. We acknowledge the work
and contribution of community members of all
Council committees including advisory committees
such as the Heritage Advisory Committee, the Indigo
Economic Development and Tourism Advisory
Committee, Environment Advisory Committee, Audit
and Finance Committees, and the Burke Museum and
Historic Precinct Committee. It’s important that we
work together because Indigo Shire as a whole then
benefits.

COMMUNITY SATISFACTION
Each year Council participates in the State-wide
community satisfaction survey conducted by
the Department of Transport Planning and Local
Infrastructure. The table below shows pleasing
results in all areas, particularly in Advocacy, Overall
Performance and Overall Council Direction. Indigo
maintained its rating on Community Consultation,
again scoring significantly higher than other small rural
shires and the state-wide result.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ANNUAL COMMUNITY SATISFACTION
State-wide Benchmarking Survey
RESULTS FOR 2014
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RESULTS

Indigo Shire
Results 2013

Indigo Shire
Results 2014

Small Rural
Shires 2014

Statewide
Results 2014

Overall Performance

56

61

60

61

Community Consultation
(consultation & engagement)

62

62

58

57

Advocacy
(lobbying on behalf of the community)

55

59

57

56

Customer Contact

71

71

71

72

Overall Council direction

52

54

54

53
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER GERRY SMITH
This Annual Report
2013-14 outlines
our performance
against the Council
Plan 2013-17 and
the initiatives and key
strategic activities of
the 2013-14 Budget,
and includes detailed
audited financial
statements. It also highlights some key achievements
and notes challenges for the future.
In making this report I acknowledge the work done
over the year by the former CEO, Brendan McGrath
and acting CEO, Greg Pinkerton.

HIGHLIGHTS
There were a number of highlights delivered across
the Shire in the past year. The Barnawartha Recreation
Reserve Multipurpose Facility ($1.3 million) was
completed in May and now provides that community
with a much-needed community hub. The construction
of the Rutherglen Kindergarten ($253,011) was
completed and the extension to the Yackandandah
Kindergarten ($320,000) was nearing completion in
June. In Chiltern, which has been impacted by floods
in recent years, the final stage of flood mitigation work
($206,564) was completed. Work to upgrade the
Kiewa-Bonegilla Road ($121,499) was finished and a
new bridge ($101,597) was built on McFeeters Road
near Beechworth. Other highlights included:
• The successful first year operation of Indigo Libraries,
following the closure of the Upper Murray Regional
Library on 30 June 2013
• 48,929 library items were borrowed by Indigo Shire
residents

LOOKING AHEAD
In May, the Federal Budget measure of freezing
indexation on grants to local government for the
next three financial years meant Council had to trim
$150,000 from its 2014-15 budget.
Council will need to look for additional and larger
savings over the next few years to meet the shortfall
of up to $1 million to the end of the 2018 financial
year.
In the coming year, we will also focus on revisiting
the priorities in the 2013-17 Council Plan, balancing
environmental protection with appropriate
development opportunities and improving service
delivery in an efficient and cost-effective manner.
We will also continue our focus on preserving
our heritage and maintaining our investment in
community infrastructure.

• Over 2,000 children attended story-telling events at
the Indigo Shire libraries
• Community grants totalling $47,500 for community
groups
• Over 14,100 hours of Home Care and Personal Care
were provided to over 410 clients (incl Veteran Affairs)
• 12,200 Meals on Wheels delivered and Community
Meals provided
• Continued support for our highly successful festivals
and events, including new events, and a total of
$25,000 in grants to event committees
• Completion of the Indigo Know & Grow project
delivering economic profiles of our villages and
identifying opportunities for development
• Welcomed more than 175,000 visitors through the
Shire’s Visitor Information Centres, taken more than
11,000 visitor phone enquiries and responded to
more than 5,000 visitor emails
• Delivery of $8.35 million of Council’s Capital Works
Budget including:
o Progress on the Yackandandah Council office/
library ($1.36 million)
o Annual gravel resheeting of rural roads ($882,879)
o Annual resealing of roads ($594,852)
• Planted 275 new street and park trees in towns
throughout the Shire
• Rezoned Mayday Hills complex in Beechworth
• Successful shared service of rates and property
services management commenced with Towong Shire
• Provided full Building and Environmental Health
service to Towong Shire

While not an infrastructure item, the purchase of
Robert O’Hara Burke’s pistol ($18,000), one of a pair
given to him before his ill-fated expedition to central
Australia, was a coup. The Friends of the Burke
Museum and other community members and Council
contributed to the cost of purchasing the pistol at
auction in Ireland. It now has pride of place in the
Burke Museum in Beechworth.

In the coming 12 months we will move into new
office accommodation in Yackandandah and
Beechworth. During this transition we will be
ensuring service delivery and our customer focus
continues to be at the forefront of our operations.
We are planning for the next 12 months and for
the future and are confident that the increased
awareness of Indigo Shire at State and Federal
Government levels will prove beneficial to our
community over the next few years.
We thank all Councillors and staff for their efforts over
the past 12 months and acknowledge our residents,
volunteers and the Indigo community as a whole for
their continued involvement in Council activities.

Cr Bernard Gaffney
Mayor

Gerry Smit h

Chief Executive Officer
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YOUR COUNCILLORS
Cr BERNARD GAFFNEY
Mayor

Elected 2008 | Mayor 2009-10, Deputy Mayor 2010-11

Committee representation

ACSUM Alliance of Shires & Councils of the Upper Murray
Audit Committee
Baarmutha Park Committee of Management (sub)
Burke Museum & Historic Precinct Advisory Committee (sub)
Finance Advisory Committee
Indigo Economic Development & Tourism Advisory Committee
Indigo Shire Grants & Awards Advisory Committee
Municipal Association of Victoria MAV
Municipal Emergency Management Planning Committee (sub)
Municipal Fire Management Planning Committee
Murray to Mountains Rail Trail Management Committee
North East Mayors’ & CEOs Forum
Rural Councils Network
Rutherglen Wine Centre Board Special Committee

Meeting attendance
11 out of 11 Ordinary Council Meetings, 7 out of 7 Special Council Meetings

Cr PETER CROUCHER
Deputy Mayor

Elected 2008 | Deputy Mayor 2011-13

Committee representation

Atauro Island Friendship Committee
Heritage Advisory Committee (sub)
Indigo Economic Development & Tourism Advisory Committee
Indigo Shire Grants & Awards Advisory Committee
Junior Council
Lake Hume Recreational Co-ordinating Committee
Rutherglen Wine Centre Board Special Committee (sub)

Meeting attendance
11 out of 11 Ordinary Council Meetings, 7 out of 7 Special Council Meetings

Cr BARBARA MURDOCH
Elected 2005 | Mayor 2012-13

Committee representation

Audit Committee
Australian Local Government Women’s Association Victorian Branch
Beechworth Trees Consultative Group
Chiltern Goods Shed Committee of Management
Finance Advisory Committee
Hume to Yarrawonga Waterway Management Advisory Group
Junior Council (sub)
North East Waste Resource Recovery Group (sub)
Rutherglen Gold Battery Committee of Management (sub)

Meeting attendance
11 out of 11 Ordinary Council Meetings, 7 out of 7 Special Council Meetings
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Cr JENNY O'CONNOR
Elected 2012

Committee representation

Australian Local Government Women’s Association Vic Branch
Burke Museum & Historic Precinct Advisory Committee (sub)
Indigo Community Access Advisory Committee (sub)
Indigo Environmental Advisory Committee
Lake Sambell Committee of Management
Murray Arts
North East Multicultural Committee

Meeting attendance
10 out of 11 Ordinary Council Meetings, 6 out of 7 Special Council Meetings

Cr JAMES TRENERY
Elected 2012

Committee representation

ACSUM Alliance of Shires & Councils of the Upper Murray
Audit Committee (sub)
Baarmutha Park Committee of Management
Finance Advisory Committee
Indigo Economic Development & Tourism Advisory Committee (sub)
Indigo Community Access Advisory Committee
Lake Hume Recreational Co-ordinating Committee (sub)
Municipal Emergency Management Planning Committee
Rutherglen Wine Centre Board Special Committee (sub)
Yack Sports Park Committee of Management

Meeting attendance
11 out of 11 Ordinary Council Meetings, 7 out of 7 Special Council Meetings

Cr ROBERTA HORNE
Elected 2012

Committee representation

Australian Local Government Women’s Association Victorian Branch
Beechworth Trees Consultative Group (sub)
Heritage Advisory Committee
Indigo Environmental Advisory Committee
Indigo Shire Grants & Awards Advisory Committee (sub)
Murray Arts (sub)

Meeting attendance
10 out of 11 Ordinary Council Meetings, 5 out of 7 Special Council Meetings

Cr DON CHAMBERS
1997-2001, 2004-05, Re-elected 2012 | Mayor 1999-2001

Committee representation

Biodiesel Community Reference Group
Burke Museum & Historic Precinct Advisory Committee
Finance Advisory Committee (sub)
Heritage Advisory Committee
Hume to Yarrawonga Waterway Management Advisory Group (sub)
Indigo Environmental Advisory Committee (sub)
Lake Sambell Committee of Management (sub)
Municipal Fire Management Planning Committee (sub)
North East Waste Resource Recovery Group
Rutherglen Gold Battery Special Committee

Meeting attendance
11 out of 11 Ordinary Council Meetings, 7 out of 7 Special Council Meetings
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COUNCIL'S PHILOSOPHY
VISION

SERVICES WE PROVIDE

INDIGO: A great place to live, work and visit.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

MISSION
To support and develop a sustainable, thriving
and resilient community through leadership and
partnerships.

VALUES
•
•
•
•
•
•

Respect, honesty and integrity
Clear and open communication
Leadership and teamwork
Community focus and engagement
Professionalism and partnerships
Innovation and creativity

KEY PRINCIPLES
• Preservation of heritage and historical features of
the Shire
• Promotion and recognition of innovation and
continuous improvement
• Recognition of cultural diversity and equality of
opportunity

Asset management
Community development
Cemeteries
Engineering work
Environment and sustainable initiatives
Festivals and events support
Footpath and road maintenance and construction
Heritage matters
Home care
Meals on Wheels
Kindergartens
Immunisations
Libraries
Local law enforcement
Maternal and child health
Preschools
Public health
Tourism
Town planning
Waste management
Youth services … and much more.

• Responsible management of Council’s resources
• Conservation of the natural environment in which
we live
• Maintenance of the rural identity and atmosphere
of rural towns
• Ensure effective planning for our future
• Build and maintain partnerships with our
community
• Pursue sustainable economic growth through
supporting agriculture, tourism and business
opportunities
• Provide customer focused service delivery
• Ensure we are leadership and governance
attuned, aware, accessible and accountable to our
community
• Promote a healthy and safe community.
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Infrastructure Services
ALAN CLARK
General Manager
(July - February)

ROBERT
UEBERGANG

Acting General Manager

OVERVIEW:
RESPONSIBILITIES

CHALLENGES

• Maintenance of roads, drainage, parks, buildings,
paths, pools, signage

• Maintaining our assets in a long-term, planned,
sustainable way, while meeting community
expectations for improvements

• Assets and infrastructure management
• Engineering, design and estimating
• Project and contracts management
• Capital Works assessment and programming
• Reviewing Capital grants for new assets for
community groups
• Quarry and materials management
• Emergency management
• Waste management
• External profit centre contracts (Buller Gas)
• Advocacy on sustainability and funding relating to
infrastructure
• Fleet and plant management.

ACHIEVEMENTS
• Delivery of $8.35 million of Council’s Capital Works
Budget

• Long-term management of lakes and dams across
the Shire
• Urban trees - refining and implementing long-term
management strategies to enhance the treescape
in all urban areas within the Shire so they can be
enjoyed by current and future generations
• Roadside trees - ensuring that we efficiently
and effectively manage trees on our roadsides
in regards to the safety of all road users and the
long-term viability of our roads and drains
• Continued advocacy for infrastructure of public
concern
• Continued high levels of completion of capital
works
• Continued pursuit of grants to add to Council’s
capacity to provide services and infrastructure
• The clear definition of service levels for all asset
classes and the accurate costings to meet those
levels.

• Completion of the 2013-2014 Chiltern Flood
Mitigation works
• Completion of the Shire’s maintenance plan to
budget
• Completed $594,852 of re-sealing works (5.5%) of
our sealed road network
• Completed $882,879 of gravel re-sheeting works
(6%) of our un-sealed road network
• Maintaining a core level of asset management
competency.
Indigo Shire Council Annual Report 2013-14								
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OPERATIONS

RON SNEDDON

Manager, Civil Operations

SERVICES

• Attention and response to over 1700 customer
enquiries and 618 garbage bin related enquiries.

• Maintenance of our assets:
- 448km of sealed roads
- 867km of unsealed roads and 169km of limited
access tracks
- 148 bridges and major culverts
- 33 parks and gardens
- 78km footpaths
- Underground and surface drainage systems
including wetlands and lakes
- Over 5,000 street trees
- Manage numerous items of specialist plant and
equipment
• Removal of hazards
• Waste Management Service
• Response to emergencies
• Operation of external service supply contract.

• Project management of a number of Council
building rehabilitation projects.
• Planting 275 new street and park trees in towns
throughout the Shire.

CHALLENGES
• Continuing to meet Council’s Road Management
Plan maintenance obligations.
• Completing the periodic resurfacing of the road
network to the nominated targets and completion
of assigned capital works.
• Reviewing and improving the levels of service
for all maintenance activities, while managing
Council’s resources in the most efficient and
effective manner.

ACHIEVEMENTS

• Continuing to implement operational actions
relating to Council’s Tree Management Plan.

• Completion of the annual gravel road re-sheeting
program treating 6% of the gravel road network.

THE FUTURE

• Completion of the annual resealing program with
5.5% of the sealed road network resealed.

• Reconstructing sections of Fletcher Road
(Beechworth), Allans Flat Road (Allans Flat),
Palmer Road and Elliot Road (Barnawartha) and
Wall Street (Chiltern).

• Assistance with the delivery of Council’s
capital works program by completing works
on Sanatorium Road (Yackandandah), Dingle
Road (Beechworth), Kiewa Bonegilla Road
(Tangambalanga), Indigo Creek Road (Indigo
Valley), Smith Street (Beechworth), Wellsford
Street (Yackandandah); kerb and channel works
including gravel shoulder sealing of Church Street,
Beechworth; Elizabeth Street, Wahgunyah; Main
Street, Chiltern; rural road culvert upgrade works;
urban underground drainage improvement at
Wahgunyah and Beechworth; and irrigation
system upgrades Fig Tree Park, Rutherglen, and
Martins Park in Chiltern.

• Reconstructing segments of kerb and channel
in Yackandandah, Beechworth, Chiltern and
Wahgunyah.
• Constructing segments of footpath in Beechworth,
Yackandandah and Rutherglen.
• Replacing play equipment at various playgrounds
throughout the Shire.
• Delivering road re-surfacing and surface drainage
programs.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL PLAN
What we said we would do

Status

What it means

Prepare Draft Hazard Mapping for high risk
Communities.

✓

Complete Hazard Mapping for Rutherglen and
Barnawartha communities.

Exercise the MECC annually with other emergency
services agencies.

✓

MECC exercise completed with all key agencies present.

Develop a management plan for one significant park
annually.

✓

Management Plans for Beechworth Town Hall Gardens
and Yackandandah Memorial Gardens completed.

Develop a program of works to replace undersized
culverts.

✓

Undersized culverts identified and top 10 priority culverts
designed and costed.

Complete annual resealing program.

✓

Annual resealing program completed in accordance with
assert condition and renewal requirements.

KEY:
10

✓ Complete/implemented ➡ Continuing/ongoing ● Incomplete D Deferred
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PROJECT DELIVERY

BRAD DINSDALE

Manager, Project Delivery

SERVICES

CHALLENGES

•
•
•
•
•
•

• Delivery of 90% plus of the 2014-15 Capital Works
Program

Forward works planning
Concept development
Engineering design
Project management and construction
Contract management
Management of delivery of the annual Capital
Works Program
• Management of the 10-year Capital Works
Program.

• Continuing to increase in-house efficiency in
engineering design.
• Updating the 10-Year Capital Works Program in
line with Council’s 10-Year Long Term Financial
Plan.

THE FUTURE
We will continue to focus on the primary objective of
managing the delivery of the Capital Work’s 20142015 Program. We will also continue to improve
our design service capability to reduce reliance on
consultants. The primary goals include:

ACHIEVEMENTS
• Completion of 68 projects totalling $8.35 million of
Council’s Capital Works Budget
• In-house civil design through use of advanced civil
design software

• Review of the contract management systems
• Formulation of a town footpath future works
priority list

• Completion of the 2013-2014 Chiltern Flood
Mitigation works

• Delivery of 90% plus of the 2014-2015 Capital
Works Program

• Implementation of the Capital Works Prioritisation
and Evaluation Policy for preparation of the 20142015 Capital Works budget

• Improve the design service capability and
efficiency

• Assisting in the preparation of Council’s 10-Year
Financial Plan.

• Update the 10-Year Capital Works Program in line
with Council’s 10-Year Long Term Financial Plan.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL PLAN
What we said we would do

Status

What it means

Complete priority capital works for historic buildings in
the 2013-2014 budget.

✓

Beechworth Burke Museum and Courthouse renewal
works program completed.

Develop new urban roads prioritisation list and seal
Smith Streeet and Short Street.

✓

Completed new prioritisation list and sealed Smith Street
and Short Street.

Develop new rural roads prioritisation list and seal
Sanatorium Road and Kiewa Bonegilla Road.

✓

Completed new prioritisation list and sealed Sanatorium
Road and Kiewa Bonegilla Road.

Upgrade McFeeters Bridge and McGrath Land culvert
floodway.

✓

Upgraded McFeeters Bridge to concrete structure
with no load lilmit. Upgraded McGrath Lane Culvert to
increased flow capacity and repaired damage structure.

KEY:

✓ Complete/implemented ➡ Continuing/ongoing ● Incomplete D Deferred
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CAPITAL WORKS SUMMARY 2013-2014
A total of $8.35 Million was expended over 68 projects within the Capital Works Program. This included a total
of $2.05 million in Shire-wide projects. This year saw a continued strong focus of capital investment on the
revitalisation of community and historical buildings and road infrastructure.
(Figures in brackets indicate the remaining budget for projects not yet completed).

SHIRE WIDE

WAHGUNYAH

Annual Resealing Contract................................... $594,852

Kerb and Channel - Elizabeth Street....................... $67,310

Indigo Library Operating Equipment & Books ........ $41,951

Footpath Sarah Street............................................ $34,055

Irrigation System Upgrades................................... $ 10,634

Wahgunyah Drainage Improvements.................... $118,868

Playground Equipment Replacement ..................... $37,901

Wahgunyah Morley Park Shade Sail....................... $15,598

Public Toilets Renewal Works................................. $15,777

Wahgunyah New Boat Ramp...................................($4,000)

Roads Major Patching............................................ $45,300
Road Culvert Upgrade............................................ $64,675
Solar Hub Project................................................... $23,876
Street and Park Furniture.......................................... $8,386
Street Tree Replacement Program.......................... $85,629
Water Refill Bubbler Station.........................$9,348 ($5,652)

TANGAMBALANGA
Kerb and Channel Kiewa East Road....................... $63,070
Kiewa Bonegilla Road Upgrade............................ $121,499
Kiewa East Road Development Plan......................... $8,488
Coulston Park Land Purchase................................ $14,231

Annual Gravel Resheeting Rural Roads................. $882,879

SANDY CREEK

Bridge Renewal Works........................................... $22,543

Rural Culvert Upgrade – McGrath Lane.................. $81,549

Flood Damage Repairs......................................... $209,989

RUTHERGLEN

STANLEY
Stanley Hall and Athenaeum Renewal Works ......... $21,584

Rutherglen Kindergarten
Construction & Renewal....................................... $253,011

INDIGO VALLEY

Rutherglen Town Hall – Water Pipe Renewal........... $14,658

Indigo Creek Road Reconstruction ........................ $78,771

Rutherglen Lions Club Renewal Works..................... $9,934
Drainage improvements............................................ $3,239
Lake King wall remedial works...................$14,140 ($9,062)
Carlyle Road sealing...........................$11,148 ($1,012,852)

CHILTERN

BEECHWORTH
Burke Museum Air Conditioning Assessment .......... $3,657
Beechworth Dingle Road Reconstruction............... $90,195
Beechworth Drainage Improvements.................... $238,733

Chiltern Flood Mitigation Works............................ $206,564

Beechworth Neighbourhood
Centre Renewal ........................................$25,443 ($9,557)

Chiltern RV Dump Point...............................$1,539 ($5,961)

Beechworth Short Street Dust Seal.......................... $9,866

Chiltern Main Street – Kerb and Channel................ $70,788

Beechworth Smith Street Dust Seal ....................... $14,380

Martins Lane kiosk structure
and concrete works...................................$15,947 ($8,213)

Courthouse and Burke Museum Renewal Works.... $68,589

YACKANDANDAH

Church Street, Kerb and Channel and Footpath..... $35,163

Yackandandah Sanatorium Road Sealing............. $136,235
Yackandandah Courthouse Repairs........................ $18,192
Yackandandah Kindergarten
Extension............................................$320,233 ($112,267)
Yackandandah Sports Park Stadium Floor Repair..... $7,350
Yackandandah Library Book Stock......................... $47,972

Beechworth Pool drainage works............................ $ 4,514
Transfer Station Development................................. $27,779
McFeeters Road Bridge Replacement.................. $101,597
Lake Sambell Dam Wall.........................$84,359 ($200,000)

OTHER WORKS
Buller Gas Reticulation Upgrades.................$579 ($29,421)

Yackandandah Wellsford Street Dust Seal.............. $30,862

Yackandandah Council
Office/Library.................................$1,357,104 ($2,746,009)

Lot 5 Turntable Lane environmental audit.................. $2,233

Municipal Office Design.......................................... $54,292

Basin Creek Road widening.................................... $18,402

Fleet Replacement ............................................... $191,427

BARNAWARTHA

Generator Purchase..............................................($15,000)

Barnawartha Recreation Reserve
Building Construction........................ $1,258,783 ($52,911)

KERGUNYAH

Plant replacement ................................................ $681,234
Road Design for Future Capex ............................... $60,688
Beechworth Huon Rail Trail scoping........................ $14,472
CFA Water Supply Tank............................................ $5,850

Kergunyah Hall water supply upgrades..................... $7,087
12
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ASSETS

ROBERT UEBERGANG
Manager, Assets

SERVICES

CHALLENGES

• Strategic management of Council’s roads, bridges,
buildings, drainage infrastructure and pathways

• Embedding and integrating the operational
processes and systems associated with a Core
level of asset management within all Council units.

• Management of fleet vehicles

• Providing clear definition to the service levels
Council provides to better define cost versus
service levels across all infrastructure asset
groups.

• Pro-active roads and pathway inspections to
satisfy Road Management Plan requirements
• Development engineering
• Managing building maintenance works.

ACHIEVEMENTS

• Use of funding in the most cost-effective and
prioritised manner to efficiently renew Council’s
infrastructure assets.

• Continuing to maintain a Core level of asset
management practice at Indigo after reaching this
target in 2012-13.

• Embedding the Infrastructure Design Manual
standards and processes as part of Indigo’s
development engineering practices.

• Implementation of the Infrastructure Design
Manual for new subdivision and development
works.

THE FUTURE
We will continue to implement new processes that
provide a core level of asset management practice
within Council. This implementation is driven by our
cross-organisational Asset Management Working
Group with periodic review and monitoring of our
Asset Management Strategy and its action plan.

• Extensive review of the Road Management Plan
with a simplified user-friendly revision 4 of the Plan
adopted by Council in February 2014.

Development engineering staff will continue to embed
processes that standardise Council infrastructure
in accord with the Infrastructure Design Manual,
providing for improved developments shire-wide and
in line with neighbouring Victorian Councils.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL PLAN
What we said we would do
Ensure that Council's asset management practices are
maintained at a core standard.
Ensure development is to a high standard.

KEY:

Status

What it means

➡

Maintenance of a Core level of asset management
practice in accord with the adopted Asset Management
Policy and Strategy.

➡

Implementation of subdivisional developements in accord
with the Infrastructure Design Manual

✓ Complete/implemented ➡ Continuing/ongoing ● Incomplete D Deferred
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Sustainable Communities
MARK FLORENCE
General Manager

OVERVIEW:
RESPONSIBILITIES
• Early Years Service co-ordination including
Maternal Child Health services

• Secured funding to support the relocation of the
Beechworth Library

• Supporting and developing young people

• Continued to progress land use planning projects

• Recreation facilities and activities

• Processed and decided over 260 planning permit
applications

• Arts and culture projects and initiatives
• Community development, access, and
partnerships
• Home and Community Care Services
• Land use and development planning applications
and permits
• Strategic land use planning
• Local Laws enforcement
• Natural Resource Management and projects
• Building Control services

• Continued building control supervision and issuing
of permits
• Completed specific focus on swimming pool
fencing compliance
• Maintained delivery of Building Control and
Environmental Health services in Towong Shire
• Supported the development of a Regional Growth
Plan
• Initiated and conducted phase three of the Energy
Efficiency Project

• Food and Public Health regulation

• Achieved a 95% inspection rate of all food
premises across the Shire and Alpine resorts

ACHIEVEMENTS

• Effectively managed local law responsibilities,
particularly animal control

• Continued support to community groups via
community grants and asset management grants
• Commenced a Place-Based approach to
community development
• Young people supported by training, health
initiatives, education and a range of events

• Continued quality delivery of in-home care for over
410 older and disabled residents
• Participated in strategic planning for Health
Services across the Shire as part of Indigo Health
Consortium

• Innovative arts and culture projects

• Maintained co-ordination of Early Year services
and completed or commenced capital upgrades
at Rutherglen, Yackandandah, and Chiltern
kindergartens.

• Improvements to recreation facilities including
swimming pools

CHALLENGES

• Celebration of special events – Volunteers,
Seniors, and Children Weeks

• Barnawartha Recreation Reserve Development
project commenced
• Consultation and design for development
of Wahgunyah Recreation Reserve facilities
completed
• Library Service consolidated across the Shire
• New library in Yackandandah commenced as part
of new office project
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• Understanding and determining Council’s ongoing
role in Aged Care service delivery across the shire
in light of State and Federal Government funding
and system changes
• Being effective in supporting communities in
achieving projects and programs with limited
resources
• Developing service levels that meet community
need and within reasonable costs.
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PLANNING & SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

IAN SCHOLES

Manager, Planning &
Sustainable Development

SERVICES

CHALLENGES

• Statutory Land Use Planning

• Development pressure in heritage precinct areas of
historic townships

• Strategic Planning

• Introduction of the VicSmart planning permit
process

• Local Laws
• Animal Control

• Continuing to provide Environmental Health
services to Alpine Resorts (Falls Creek and Mt
Hotham)

• Building Control
• Building Surveying

• Continuing to meet the demand for our heritage
advisory service when State Government grants
now cover less than 25% of the service cost

• Environmental Health
• Environmental programs and Natural Resource
Management

• Continuing the Renewable Energy project in an
environment of declining government support for
energy efficiency.

ACHIEVEMENTS
• Rezoned Mayday Hills complex in Beechworth

THE FUTURE

• Provided full Building and Environmental Health
service to Towong Shire

As the Shire continues to grow and develop we
face the classic problem of our success potentially
endangering the attractions that are making us
successful. Council will spend considerable time
during 2014-15 and the next few years reviewing and
strengthening our heritage management while also
ensuring that the economic growth of our historic
townships continues to expand.

• Secured funding for Indigo to act as lead Council
(with Towong and Wodonga) for Climate Change
Adaptation Study
• Formal agreement signed for the use of Wodonga
City Council Pound services
• Significant increase in commercial building
inspection activity, particularly in Towong Shire.

A major challenge for the next few years will be
building a consensus in our community as to how
we provide for new investment and growth while
safeguarding our heritage.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL PLAN
What we said we would do
Meeting our statutory obligations for building
regulations
Active involvement in local government environmental
sustainability programs

Continue to improve the Council’s development
controls to support growth and sustainability

Status

✓

• Successfully completed the Building Commission
Swimming Pool Audit programs
• Doubled the number of building enforcement actions

✓

• Council secured funding from the Climate Change
Adaptation Program and is now the lead Council
(together with Towong and Wodonga) for a two-year
program to ensure local government can adapt to our
changing climate

✓

• Prepared and had approved (by government) the
rezoning of the Mayday Hills complex in Beechworth
to allow for its transition from ownership by La Trobe
University to private developers.

➡
KEY:

What it means

• Reviewed the Indigo Planning Scheme

✓ Complete/implemented ➡ Continuing/ongoing ● Incomplete D Deferred
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COMMUNITY PLANNING

DAVID KOREN

Manager, Community Planning

SERVICES

CHALLENGES

• Home and Community Care (HACC) service and
services for people with a disability

• To provide an ageing community with clientcentred, home-based care that embraces the
‘Living Longer, Living Better’ strategy.

• Early Years Service support eg Maternal and Child
Health and kindergartens
• Support to community committees and
organisations and their volunteers
• Youth Services including FreeZa and North East
Skate Series
• Arts and cultural services
• Rural Access Program
• Recreation services including swimming pools
• Library services
• Community and social planning
• Community grants
• Emergency recovery support

ACHIEVEMENTS
• 40 Community grants given to support community
projects
• Major events and activities for young people
throughout the Shire, including North East Skate
Series
• Arts and cultural projects, including the ‘Knit a
Hammer’ project

• Volunteer retention and recruitment
• Increasing costs of living for our residents
• Increasing costs of maintaining our community
infrastructure such as ageing community
swimming pools and recreation facilities.

THE FUTURE
• Implementation of Health and Wellbeing actions
and initiatives
• Continued improvements to recreation
infrastructure including swimming pools
• Providing flexible and integrated HACC services to
increasing needs
• Volunteer retention, training and development
• Support for development of social connection
opportunities for communities
• Improved emergency recovery structures
• New Yackandandah library and changing nature of
library services
• Indigo Shire cycle trail development.

• Successful events conducted during Volunteers
Week and Seniors Week
• Over 45,000 entries to Council’s five swimming
pools
• Over 14,100 hours of Home Care and Personal
Care given to over 410 clients (incl Veteran Affairs)
• 12,200 Meals on Wheels delivered and
Community Meals provided
• 48,929 library items were borrowed by Indigo
Shire Residents in 2013-2014
• Over 2,000 children took part in story-telling
events at the Indigo Shire libraries
• 132 new babies born across the shire (18 at
Barnawartha, 15 at Chiltern, 28 at Beechworth, 29
at Tangambalanga, 27 at Rutherglen/Wahgunyah
and 14 at Yackandandah)
• 40 Indigo Shire school students attended Portsea
camp in January 2014
• Successful school holiday films held in various
locations.
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KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL PLAN
What we said we would do
Survey community service recipients to establish levels
of satisfaction and priorities for improvement

Facilitate and co-ordinate the Junior Council program
throughout the Shire

Support Committees of Management and other
volunteer community groups

Continue involvement in cycle/walking track programs
and networks

As appropriate and in partnership with relevant
agencies support the implementation of the Hume
Region Health Promotion Strategy

KEY:

Status

What it means

✓

People in the community receiving services such as
HACC services and Maternal Child Health services were
surveyed. The results were assessed and changes were
made where required.

✓

School children from the Indigo Primary Schools met
regularly to learn more about Council and raise funds
for local projects. The annual trip to Melbourne provided
children with an opportunity to learn about leadership,
responsibility and public speaking.

➡

Committees are provided with some financial support
from Council through Asset and Community Grants and
are provided with information to help them manage their
committee responsibilities effectively.

➡

Continue to work and plan to develop a network of
cycle/walking paths that meet the needs of the local
community and provide opportunities for economic and
tourism development.

➡

Work with Beechworth Health and Indigo North Health
to provide information and programs to the community
to promote the benefits of healthy eating and increased
physical activity.

✓ Complete/implemented ➡ Continuing/ongoing ● Incomplete D Deferred
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Corporate Services
GREG PINKERTON
General Manager
(July - February)

FIONA SHANKS

Acting General Manager
(February - June)

OVERVIEW:
RESPONSIBILITIES

CHALLENGES

• Customer service

• Responding to the tightening financial outlook
(long-term financial planning)

• Finance
• Rates and charges
• Tourism
• Visitor Information Centres

• Continued increases in financial and performance
reporting requirements
• Increased demands for event support (funding and
in-kind support).

• Economic Development
• Burke Museum & Historic Precinct
• Information Technology
• Corporate Information Management
• Business Improvement
• Carlyle Cemetery

ACHIEVEMENTS
• Met all financial requirements, deadlines, and
reporting standards
• Successful annual financial audit
• Continued low financial risk rating with the
Victorian Auditor’s sustainability indicators
• Successful shared service on rates with Towong
Shire
• De-accession of R. E. Johns collection items
• Purchase of Burke’s pistol.
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FINANCE & INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

FRANK BONACCI
Manager, Finance &
Information Technology

SERVICES

ACHIEVEMENTS

• Statutory financial reporting obligations

• All Council’s legal and statutory reporting
obligations have been met

• Annual Budget preparation and ongoing
monitoring

• Continuing focus on procurement compliance

• Monthly financial reporting to Council

• The annual budget process continues to be
streamlined along with the quarterly budget
reviews

• Accounting and financial support to Council
departments

• Revaluation of all properties within the municipality

• Audit Committee support

• Software upgrade of Council’s major finance
systems

• Compliance with all relevant taxation obligations
• Calculation, generation and collection of all Council
rates and the State fire services levy

• Internal audit reviews undertaken

• Ensuring all Council employees are paid correctly

CHALLENGES

• Ensuring all suppliers are paid and all appropriate
controls around those payments are implemented

• Compliance with the growing list of reporting
requirements

• Management of Council’s cash position and
investment portfolio

• Developing a budget and Long-term Financial Plan
that balances the demands to maintain or improve
services in an environment of shrinking external
funding

• Delivery of day-to-day information technology
services to all Shire staff and Councillors in a cost
effective manner

THE FUTURE

• Plan for future information technology needs
through preparations and delivery of system
strategies

• Working with Council and the senior executive to
develop a medium to long-term financial plan that
supports a revised Council Plan

• Procurement and financial sustainability

• Seamless transition of IT services for two separate
office moves

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL PLAN
What we said we would do
Review and update Council’s rating strategy

Develop, review and update standard financial tools
and calculators used by budget managers

KEY:

Status

What it means

D

Initial briefings held with Council however this has been
delayed and will be completed in the first half of the
2014-15 financial year.

D

Delayed to coincide with the long-term financial plan. To
be completed in the 2014-15 financial year.

✓ Complete/implemented ➡ Continuing/ongoing ● Incomplete D Deferred

Indigo Shire Council Annual Report 2013-14								

19

RESIDENT & TOURISM
SERVICES
SERVICES
• Support to business and industry
• Access to statistical information and economic
modelling software
• Referral to local, state and federal business
support agencies
• New resident and business relocation facilitation
• Managing projects of local priority and economic
significance
• Support, help and advice to tourism businesses
with marketing initiatives, tourism development,
and tourism excellence workshops
• Assistance for a host of festivals and events
including logistical support, marketing and
publicity expertise, ticket sales through the
Beechworth Visitor Information Centre
• Visitor Information Services including attending to
all visitor enquiries, distribution of Shire marketing
materials regionally and to metropolitan areas,
bookings for major festivals and accommodation
• Developing and distributing marketing material
such as Official Visitor Guides, town banners
• Shire-wide promotional footage for TV and online
use, and image library
• Operating and marketing the Burke Museum and
Beechworth Historic & Cultural Precinct
• Customer service including phone and counter
enquiries, receipting of payments and permit
applications
• Processing of incoming correspondence,
development of records management policy and
assistance with Council’s records system

ACHIEVEMENTS
• Completion of the Indigo Know & Grow project
delivering economic profiles of the Shire,
our villages, and identifying opportunities for
development
• Welcomed more than 175,000 visitors through
the Shire’s Visitor Information Centres, taken
more than 11,000 visitor phone enquiries and
responded to more than 5,000 visitor emails
• Received more than 130 responses to the Indigo
Shire business survey to assess the impact of
Council’s economic development activity and
target future work
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KATE BIGLIN

Manager, Tourism &
Resident Services

• Supported the Dairy Pathways Project and
mapped services available to Indigo Shire’s
agricultural sector
• Supported 35 festivals and events with financial
and in-kind support - these events injected
approximately $16.5 million into indigo Shire’s
economy
• Worked with VicTrack to oversee renovations
of the former Chiltern Goods Shed into a cycle
tourism hub and Chiltern Mt Pilot National Park
entry point
• Continued to contribute to the development of
the Regional Digital Platform which will see new
tourism destination websites for the Shire’s hero
tourism villages
• Celebrated the 150th anniversary of Beechworth’s
Burke Museum with a special exhibition, and
acquired Robert O’Hara Burke’s pistol from Ireland
for permanent display in the collection
• Delivered new film vignettes for key festivals in
the Shire to showcase their events online and in
television promotions
• Reduced administrative costs in excess of
$40,000 in areas such as phones, paper, printing
and offsite records storage
• Registered over 11,000 documents/emails in
Council’s Electronic Records Management System
(TRIM)
• Answered 40,000 phone calls and processed
14,000 payment transactions
• Broadened the scope of the administrative
resource in customer service that supports all
departments throughout the organisation.

CHALLENGES
• Increasing regulation, particularly in regard to traffic
management and risk, for our Shire’s festivals and
events
• Natural weather events such as bushfires and
floods in the region
• The combination of the library/customer service
centre model at Beechworth and Yackandandah
will involve learning new systems and processes
• The continued transition to working electronically
and reducing paper-based systems.
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THE FUTURE
• Deliver actions identified in the Economic
Development Strategy and Tourism Strategy

• Launch and develop the cycle tourism offering
from the former Chiltern Goods Shed site

• Launch new tourism websites for Yackandandah,
Chiltern and Beechworth

• Continue to assess and evaluate customer service
delivery to ensure ongoing improvement

• Launch an online Indigo Shire business information
portal

• Improvements to the filing structure to
facilitate archiving and destruction in line with
recordkeeping practices

• Open the Ned Kelly Vault in Beechworth’s Historic
& Cultural Precinct, as part of the broader project
to revitalise this tourism and cultural icon

• Improved training frequency to develop better
understanding of Council’s Electronic Document
Management System and records management in
general.

• Review and upgrade the Indigo Shire tourism and
economic development image library

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL PLAN
What we said we would do
Deliver actions identified in the Economic Development
Strategy and Tourism Strategy
Complete the Indigo Know & Grow Project to build
economic profiles of our Shire and villages and to
identify opportunities for development
Develop a business survey to inform Council’s
economic development activities

Launch new websites on Tourism North East’s
Regional Digital Platform

Update our customer service systems to allow for
appropriate data capture, tracking, monitoring and
reporting of customer enquiries
Develop an improved method of measuring customer
satisfaction with front-line Council interactions, and
then improve the result by the end of this Council term

KEY:

Status

What it means

➡

Solid progress was made on implementing the Indigo
Shire Tourism Strategy 2013-18 and Economic
Development Strategy 2012-17.

✓

Indigo Shire has a set of economic profiles for our Shire
and villages, as well as a retail report, gap analysis, and
direction for future economic development activity.

✓

The inaugural Indigo Shire Business Survey saw 133 local
businesses provided valuable information on the state of
the business in the Shire, issues impacting business and
feedback on Council’s economic development activities.

➡

The Regional Digital Platform – it has taken longer
than anticipated to develop the innovative back end
technology that will underpin our new websites. Indigo
Shire destinations still to be delivered on the platform will
be launched early in 2015.

➡

Investigate alternative options for Customer Request
Management systems that will simplify reporting
capabilities.

➡

Customer feedback cards and telephone survey question
implemented July 2014. Results to be collated and a
benchmark set for future monitoring.

✓ Complete/implemented ➡ Continuing/ongoing ● Incomplete D Deferred
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Our People
FIONA SHANKS

Manager Organisational
Development
(July - February)

DALENE VOIGT

Acting Manager
Organisational Development
(February - June)

OUR PEOPLE & SYSTEMS
Indigo Shire Council staff and volunteers
are Council’s most valuable asset
and are the strength behind Council’s
success. We have a range of full-time,
part-time and casual staff members, as
well as volunteers, with a diverse skills
base across a wide range of disciplines.
Council is proud of the dedication and
respect they show to the community and
of the enormous contribution they make
to improve the services delivered to our
community.
In this section we outline the organisation’s
structure, provide an overview of our risk
and governance systems, describe our
staff support programs and tell you about
their achievements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Brendan McGrath
July 2013 - Jan 2014

Greg Pinkerton (Acting)
March 2014 - June 2014

Gerry Smith
June 2014 -

EXECUTIVE TEAM

EXECUTIVE TEAM
Due to their reporting line, and
management responsibilities there are
six positions at Council that are classified
as Senior Officers under the Local
Government Act 1989. The positions are:

Mark Florence
General Manager
Sustainable
Communities

Greg Pinkerton Robert Uebergang Roberta Baker
General Manager A/General Manager
Manager
Corporate
Infrastructure
Communications
Services
Services

Fiona Shanks
Manager
Transition
Support

• Chief Executive Officer
• General Manager, Infrastructure Services
• General Manager, Sustainable
Communities
• General Manager, Corporate Services
• Manager, Media & Communications
• Manager, Transition Support
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WORKFORCE INFORMATION
WORKFORCE PROFILE
- gender and employment status

HUMAN RESOURCES
Our Human Resources area is responsible for
recruitment and supports our people through the
administration of matters related to employee
entitlements, performance management, training
and development, safety, wellbeing activities
and benefits. We also provide guidance and
assistance in the interpretation of Enterprise
Agreement conditions and industrial relations.

As at 30 June 2014, our staff profile by gender and
employment status was:
83

Number of People and % of workforce

90
80

No. of people

70

% of workforce

60
50

60

Our key achievements this year include:

43

40

31

28

30
20

22
15

11

10
0

Female part time

Female full time

Male part time

Male full time

Note: "part-time" includes casual employees

WORKFORCE DATA (full time equivalent)
Year

Full time

Part time

Full time
equivalent

2013/2014

83

48

131

2012/2013

88

41

129

2011/2012

85

43

128

2010/2011

89

102

129

2009/2010

89

118

131

STAFF NUMBERS BY BUSINESS UNIT WAS:
Designated
Group

Male Female Total
(head (head (head
count) count) count)

Full time
equivalent

Corporate
Services

14

29

43

30.3

Infrastructure
Services

46

5

51

45.6

Sustainable
Communities

16

68

84

45.1

Governance,
Communications,
Organisational
Development

3

9

12

10.3

Total

79

111

190

131.3

Learning and Development program
Council continues to provide a range of
learning and development opportunities for
staff to enable them to reach their potential
and improve performance. These are delivered
in a variety of ways including onsite training,
e-learning, one-on-one coaching, group training,
professional development and by providing
internal secondment opportunities. Training is
often a shared commitment between Council
and the employee and we have a number
of staff undertaking Certificate IV, diploma,
undergraduate and post graduate studies.
We continue to build the organisation’s capability
by ensuring professional development is available
via leadership and management courses, and
we continue our training obligations required by
regulation such as first aid and OH&S annual
licences and qualifications.
Training completed this year included customer
service training, induction to local government,
workplace behaviour, email usage, chemical
user’s qualifications, OH&S, traffic management,
software training and manual handling.
Following staff consultation, Council developed
a Grievance & Dispute Resolution Procedure
and in preparation for our move to new office
accommodation, a Change Management Group
was formed, comprising a cross section of staff,
to provide consultation opportunities in the
development of plans for the move.

Health & Wellbeing
This year Council’s new Employee Assistance
Program provider commenced regular visits
to our sites to provide confidential counselling
and support services for staff. Other health
and wellbeing activities have included flu
vaccinations, health checks, fruit baskets to the
workplaces, distribution of health and wellbeing
information, the opportunity to participate in
fitness sessions such as lunchtime walks, selffunded yoga classes after work and promotion of
the Local Government Health insurance plan.
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Staff Service Awards

Service Awards

Each year we recognise and reward staff in a number
of ways. While our priority is to focus on saying
thank-you when it is deserved, we also have formal
ways in which we recognise our staff. These include
professional development opportunities, employee of
the month recognition and service awards.

45 years
30 years
25 years
15 years
10 years

Employee of the Month Winners:
Staff nominate their peers each month for
demonstrating exceptional customer service,
commitment to the community and going that
extra mile in undertaking their role. Nominations are
collated and the Senior Management Team vote for
the monthly winner.
July 2013
August 2013

Frank Connell

- Media & Communications Officer

Robin Thom

- Administration Officer, Planning &
Sustainable Development

September 2013

Sandra Forrest

October 2013

Linda Peacock

November 2013

Robert Dickie

December 2013/
January 2014
February 2014
March 2014
April 2014
May 2014
June 2014

- Early Years Coordinator
- Collections Management Officer
- Senior Customer Service Officer

Travis Basham

- Team Leader Planning

Gay Healy

- Statutory Finance Officer

Colin Lindner

- Tree Maintenance Worker

Leah Jones-Davies

- Risk Advisor

Matt O'Keefe

- Towns Team Worker - Chiltern

Robin Thom

- Administration Officer, Planning &
Sustainable Development

Employee of the Year
All winners of the Employee of the Month Awards
vie for the overall Employee of the Year Award.
This award is presented for consistent high levels
of performance, productivity, service delivery and
customer focus across the calendar year and is
judged by the Corporate Management Group. The
winner for 2013 was Ms. Therese Crane – Tourism
Support Officer.
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-

Glenn Colwell
John Pleming
Simon Martin & Peter Lehman
Pamela King & Mandy Wallace
Steve Lembke, Penny MacGregor,
Travis Basham, Susan Greenhill &
Mary-Ann King

Volunteers
Indigo Shire Council recognises the importance
of volunteers and work experience students
within the community. Volunteers are valued for
providing customer focused services and enhancing
established Council programs. Work experience
provides students, who are either residents of
the Shire or attend educational institutions within
the Shire, have the opportunity to gain short term
practical experience within their chosen field of
employment.

Risk, Governance & OH&S
The unit supports the Council and staff in complying
with legislation in the areas of risk management,
Occupational Health and Safety, governance and
audit functions specifically in relation to the Victorian
Local Government Act and associated legislation. In
addition there is broad oversight of insurance, legal,
privacy and freedom of information matters.
Our key achievements this year include:
• Delivery of information sessions and launch of a
new handbook – supporting the volunteers on our
Section 86 committees.
• Development of Council’s Crisis Management Plan
and Business Continuity Policy – strengthening
Council’s ability to respond to crisis events.
• Occupational Health and Safety co-ordination
Indigo Shire Council continues to improve its
workplace culture of focusing on the health and
safety of its employees, contractors, customers
and visitors.
All hazards identified are recorded in an online
system that ensures all corrective actions are taken.
Our OHS Committee met six times during the year
and endorsed eight policies and procedures.
• Risk Management review
Council continues to embed risk management
practices throughout the organisation and continues
to refine its framework with the oversight of Council’s
Audit Committee. Our staff are made aware of risk
management through induction, training and staff
resource materials including the Risk Management
Strategy and Employee Handbook. In addition, risk
management accountabilities are included in all
position descriptions and performance reviews for
senior staff.
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The Audit Committee met five times during
year. During the 2013-14 financial year the Audit
Committee received and endorsed the following:
• Management of Section 86 Committees and
Volunteers Internal Audit Review
• Procurement including Purchasing (Credit) Cards
Internal Audit Review
• Contract Management Internal Audit Review
• End of Financial Year Statements
• Draft 2014-15 Budget
• 12 Month Internal Audit Plan

During the year Council’s Audit Committee
commenced a review in collaboration with the
Corporate Management Group of Council’s Risk
Management Framework.

Audit Committee
Indigo Shire Council’s Audit Committee operates
under section 139 of the Local Government Act. The
Committee comprises of 4 independent members
with areas of expertise in risk, financial management,
business management and governance. The
Committee also comprises of 2 Councillors.
Independent members
• Kay Thawley
• Simon Doherty
• Ian McKinlay

The Audit Committee also received the 2012-2014
JMAPP Property Risk Management Audit Report.
Council’s overall result has increased from 62% in
2012 to 83% in 2014 with further improvements
envisaged.

Councillor members
• Cr Bernard Gaffney
• Cr Barbara Murdoch

The Chief Executive Officer, Manager Organisational
Development and Risk Advisor, together with
Council’s internal auditor, attend all committee
meetings but are not voting members.
Council’s internal audit services were provided by
Johnsons MME, who commenced their contract on
1 July 2012.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL PLAN
What we said we would do

Status

Monitor and implement legislation from Government
Departments and provide to Council

What it means

✓

Continued implementation of monitoring via Advent
(Compliance Management Software), a program that
ensures Council is aware of and complying with all forms
of legislation applicable to Council matters. Various
updates and circulars are monitored by the Governance
Officer.

✓

Ongoing project that will be finalised during the first
half of 2014/15 financial year. Specialist advice has
been obtained and will see Council’s risk management
framework further refined to include updated Risk
Management Strategy, Risk Management Policy and Risk
Management Procedure and the continued embedding
of risk practices into our daily operations.

Implement risk management reporting framework

Conduct internal audits on various aspects of our
operations to ensure good governance practices are
being complied with

Three internal audits have been completed in 2013-14
with the reports and actions against recommendations
provided to the Audit Committee. These audits were:

✓

• Management of Section 86 Committees and
Volunteers Internal Audit Review
• Procurement including Purchasing (Credit) Cards
Internal Audit Review
• Contract Management Internal Audit Review

KEY:

✓ Complete/implemented ➡ Continuing/ongoing ● Incomplete D Deferred
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Our Performance
PERFORMANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
INTRODUCTION
Section 132 of the Local Government Act 1989 states that the Council must prepare a
Performance Statement and the Performance Statement must include Key Strategic
Activities and performance targets and measures specified in the budget for that financial
year. The Performance Statement must also include actual results achieved for that financial
year having regard to those performance targets and measures.
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LEADERSHIP OF OUR PEOPLE AND OUR COMMUNITY

Ref

Strategic Activity

1

Finalise
refurbishment,
construction and
commissioning of
Council offices as
determined in
Council’s office
accommodation
strategy

2

Actively market
monthly community
forums to ensure
best possible
attendances

3

Implement risk
management
reporting framework

Performance
Measure
One office
completed
and occupied,
one office
under
construction

Performance
Target Date
June 2014

Actual
Date
N/a

5% increase in
numbers
attending in
2013-2014
compared to
2012-2013
Adoption of a
risk
management
reporting
framework by
CMG and
Audit
Committee

June 2014

June
2014

Achieved

June 2014

N/a

Not
achieved

The Risk framework has
been developed and
approved by CMG. The
framework is yet to be
formally approved by
the Audit Committee.

Management
Comment
2013-14 reseal
program area sealed
150,987m2= 5.6% of
sealed road network.
2013-14 gravel resheet
program 53,330 m= 6%
of unsealed road
network.
McFeeters Road Bridge
replaced and
strengthened to
remove load limit
restriction and improve
safe access.

MANAGING OUR BUILT ENVIRONMENT

Ref

Strategic Activity

4

Outcome

Not
achieved

Performance
Target Date
April 2014

Actual
Date
February
2014

Outcome

Renew our sealed
road network to a
sustainable level

Performance
Measure
Reseal 4% of
the sealed
road network

5

Renew our unsealed
road network to a
sustainable level

Resheet 4% of
the unsealed
road network

June 2014

June
2014

Achieved

6

Renew or replace
one bridge to
maintain safe access
for residents

Renew or
replace one
bridge

June 2014

February
2014

Achieved

Achieved

Management
Comment
Project underway,
however target dates
delayed due to
unforeseen
circumstances.
Currently one office is
underway and one yet
to begin. Expected both
to be finished by end of
2014/15 financial year.
6.4% increase in
attendees in 2013/14
compared to 2012/13.
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GROWING OUR ECONOMIC PROSPERITY

Ref

Strategic Activity

Performance
Measure
Review and
update
council’s
rating strategy

Performance
Target Date
March 2014

Actual
Date
N/a

7

Optimise our financial
sustainability

8

Develop an improved
method of measuring
customer satisfaction
with front-line
Council interactions

Benchmark
survey
completed

May 2014

N/a

Not
achieved

9

Improve the use of
strategic financial
tools

Develop/revie
w/update
standard
financial tools
and
calculators
used by
Budget
managers

June 2014

N/a

Not
achieved

Ref

Strategic Activity

10

Establish
environmental best
practice objectives
and actions and
incorporate into
decision making
criteria for Council
programs and capital
works activities

DEVELOP SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES

11

Council’s
development services
controls reflect the
Council’s view of a
sustainable Indigo
Shire

12

Empower all people
in Indigo Shire to
access the
information, support
and services they
need to lead healthy,
active , safe and
culturally diverse
lifestyles

Outcome
Not
achieved

Performance
Measure
Review the
Indigo
Environment
Strategy and
have it
adopted by
Council

Performance
Target Date
June 2014

Actual
Date
N/a

Outcome

Review the
Roadside
Conservation
Management
Plan and have
it adopted by
Council
Review the
Indigo
Planning
Scheme and
have it
adopted by
Council
Implement
the new
Library system
across the
Shire and
provide a full
year report of
operations to
Council

June 2014

N/a

Not
achieved

June 2014

N/a

Not
achieved

June 2014

June
2014

Achieved

Not
achieved

Management
Comment
Initial briefings held
with councillors;
however this has been
delayed and will be
completed in the first
half of the 2014/15
financial year.
Survey was developed,
however completion
has been postponed to
coincide with Council’s
phone system
enhancement. To be
completed in 2014/15
financial year.
Delayed to coincide
with long term financial
plan. To be completed
in 2014/15 financial
year.

Management
Comment
This project has
commenced, however
the target date for
completion was not
achieved. This will be
finalised in the 2014/15
financial year.
This project has
commenced, however
the target date for
completion was not
achieved. This will be
finalised in the 2014/15
financial year.
This project has
commenced, however
the target date for
completion was not
achieved. This will be
finalised in the 2014/15
financial year.
Website system is up
and running.
Councillors were
emailed with 2013/14
Operational Plan.

Indigo Shire Council Annual Report 2013-14								

27

28

Indigo Shire Council Annual Report 2013-14

Indigo Shire Council Annual Report 2013-14								

29

30

Indigo Shire Council Annual Report 2013-14

Financial Reports
Indigo Shire Council
Year ended 30 June 2014

CONTENTS
STANDARD STATEMENTS
Standard Income Statement
Standard Balance Sheet
Standard Cash Flow Statement
Standard Statement of Capital Works
Notes to the Standard Statements
Certification of the Standard Statements

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial Statements
Notes to the Financial Statements
Certification of the Financial Report
Auditor General’s Report on the Standard and Financial Statements

Indigo Shire Council Annual Report 2013-14								

31

Indigo Shire Council
Standard Income Statement for the year ended 30 June 2014
2014
Budget
$’000

Variance
Actual
$’000

$’000

%

Reference

Revenue
Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees
Contributions
Grants – Operating
Other income
Total Revenue

13,066
764
587
259
4,442
4,193
23,311

12,944
800
728
239
3,753
3,980
22,444

(122)
36
141
(20)
(689)
(213)
(867)

(1%)
5%
24%
(8%)
(16%)
(5%)
(4%)

1

Expenses
Employee costs
Materials and services
Bad and doubtful debts
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Other expenses
Total Expenses
Underlying result

10,711
6,566
6
5,302
208
3,510
26,303
(2,992)

10,350
6,973
10
5,123
157
3,216
25,829
(3,385)

361
(407)
(4)
179
51
294
474
(393)

3%
(6%)
(67%)
3%
25%
8%
2%
(13%)

5
6

2,344
163
-

5,815
505
1,090

3,471
342
1,090

148%
210%
100%

10
11
12

8
(477)

(162)
3,863

(170)
4,340

(2125%)
(910%)

13

Capital grants
Capital contributions
Asset revaluation increment / (decrement)
Net gain on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment
Net surplus/(deficit)

32
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4

7
8
9
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Indigo Shire Council
Standard Income Statement for the year ended 30 June 2014
Variance Explanation Report ($’000s)
Ref 1. Rates and charges (revenue)
In August 2013 prior to 2013-14 rate notices being issued, Council altered the charges to ratepayers for the domestic and
organics waste services to reflect revised changes of the anticipate commencement of the new organics service. While
the charges to be applied to rate notices were altered, the budgeted income for the services were not altered and the
unfavourable variance in rate revenue reflects the lower rates collected due to the deferred introduction of the new
service.
Ref 2. User fees (revenue)
The favourable variance in user fees is due to higher than budget income from a combination of sub-divisional fees, food
premises inspections within Environmental Health and higher levels of Land Information certificate requests.
Ref 3. Grants – operating (revenue)
The unfavourable variance in operating grants is due to the cessation of the practice to pay Councils part of the following
years Victorian Grants Commission (VGC) funding in the prior year. In 2013-14, Indigo Shire (and all other shires)
effectively received 50% of a full years VGC funding. The unfavourable VGC funding variance is offset to some degree
by additional funding received for community care, youth services, early years co-ordination and extra safer roads
funding.
Ref 4. Other income (revenue)
The unfavourable variance to budget in other revenue is due to lower sales value within Buller Gas caused by lower than
budgeted unit rates for LPG. This is in turn offset by lower gas prices purchased within material and consumables. This
unfavourable variance is offset by favourability of interest received and higher levels of income from private care.
Ref 5. Employee costs (expense)
The favourable variance within employee costs is due to a combination of two senior executive vacancies for an
extended period during the year; delivery of rating services for the full year and tourism management for half the year
being budgeted as an employee but delivered as an external contract service (and offset by higher material and services
costs – see Ref 6 below); and the balance of the favourability due to a number of short term vacancies throughout the
organisation.
Ref 6. Materials and services (expense)
The unfavourable variance in material and services is a combination of additional works within road maintenance and
tree management services; delivery of rating services for the full year and tourism management for half the year as an
external service while being budgeted as an employee; service costs associated the transfer of library services from the
Upper Murray Regional Library service; additional costs to deliver unbudgeted grants received within youth services
and early years co-ordination; higher than budgeted recruitment costs; and the purchase and delivery of the Burke pistol
(which was largely funded by donations). This unfavourable variance is offset to some degree by lower LPG purchase
value within Buller Gas caused by lower than budgeted unit rates (See Ref 4 above).
Ref 7. Depreciation and amortisation (expense)
The main causes of the favourable variance in depreciation and amortisation is the large value of capital works
remaining incomplete at the end of both 2012-13 and 2013-14 and therefore not being depreciated for the length of time
budgeted; a strong take up of novated leasing by most senior managers delivering a significant saving in fleet
depreciation; and older items becoming fully depreciated in either 2012-13 or 2013-14 which were incorrectly budgeted
to depreciate for the full year.
Ref 8. Finance costs
The 2013-14 Budget assumed that new loans for the year would be taken up early in the financial year to accommodate
the cash flow requirements of the capital works program, particularly the new Council office accommodation project. As
that project and other capital work projects were delayed during the course of the year, the take up of the new
borrowings was also delayed to the end of the financial year and the favourable variance within borrowing costs reflects
the savings of deferring the take up of the 2013-14 borrowings.
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Indigo Shire Council
Standard Income Statement for the year ended 30 June 2014
Ref 9. Other expenses (expense)
The major reasons for the favourable variance within other expenses are the reduced contributions (versus budget) for the
Upper Murray Regional Library service which transferred to an in house service (which in turn was offset by higher
employee and contract service costs); net rental savings for the portable office accommodation for the Yackandandah
office; lower fleet vehicle leasing costs due to strong take up of novated leasing by most senior managers; and lower than
budgeted legal costs.
Ref 10. Capital grants (revenue)
The significant favourable variance in capital grants is due unbudgeted grants received for the Lake Sambell wall issue
($2.0 million), Lake King Remedial works ($0.5 million), the Beechworth library relocation ($0.26 million), drainage
improvement works at Beechworth and Wahgunyah, the Beechworth police paddock stables and the Baarmutha Park
grand stand.
Ref 11. Capital contributions - (revenue)
Capital contributions are favourable to budget due to a number of unbudgeted gifted assets including the Rutherglen
water tower (at fair value), developer roads, drains and kerb and channel and the payment of a sizable developer
contribution written off as a bad debt in prior years.
Ref 12. Asset revaluation increment
The Asset revaluation increment is due entirely to the revaluation of the road asset categories during the year which was
not anticipated when the budget was prepared.
Ref 13. Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
The variance within Net gain / (loss) on disposal of assets is due to the disposal of a lease item of plant for zero proceeds
while it retained a sizable written down value and a higher than budgeted loss on disposal of one lot of industrial land.
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Indigo Shire Council
Standard Balance Sheet for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014
Budget
$’000
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Non-current assets classified as held for resale
Inventory
Other assets
Total Current Assets

Variance
Actual
$’000

$

%

Reference

2,061
2,142
86
295
1,073
5,657

6,612
3,287
173
196
937
11,205

4,551
1,145
87
(99)
(136)
5,548

221%
53%
101%
(34%)
(13%)
98%

35
191,196
191,231
196,888

21
188,478
188,499
199,704

(14)
(2,718)
(2,732)
2,816

(40%)
(1%)
(1%)
1%

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trust Funds and Deposits
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

2,729
416
184
1,487
4,816

2,279
396
209
2,280
5,164

(450)
(20)
25
793
348

(16%)
(5%)
14%
53%
7%

20
21

Non-Current Liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets

2,819
1,825
4,644
9,460
187,428

2,917
1,190
4,107
9,271
190,433

98
(635)
(537)
(189)
3,005

3%
(35%)
(12%)
(2%)
2%

21
22

Equity
Accumulated surplus
Asset revaluation reserve
Other reserves
Total Equity

88,930
97,765
733
187,428

92,181
97,169
1,083
190,433

3,251
(596)
350
3,005

4%
(1%)
48%
2%

23
24
25

Non Current Assets
Trade and other receivables
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets
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Indigo Shire Council
Standard Balance Sheet for the year ended 30 June 2014
Variance Explanation Report
Ref 14. Cash and cash equivalents
Higher levels of cash at year end versus budget are due to a combination of two large capital grants received late in the
2013-14 year for the Lake Sambell ($2.0 million) and Lake King ($0.5 million) projects scheduled for 2014-15 and
money set aside to fund the completion of the 2013-14 capital works that remain incomplete at 30 June 2014 (mainly
the Council Office Accommodation project).
Ref 15. Trade and other receivables (current)
Trade and other receivables are higher than budget due to delays is issuing reminder letters to debtors in arrears.
Ref 16 Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Council is currently in negotiations for two separate industrial land lots which are expected to be sold in 2014-15 versus
a view when the budget was set that only one lot would be sold in 2014-15.
Ref 17. Inventory
Inventory is unfavourable to budget due to lower levels of quarry and Buller Gas stock levels at year end versus what
was anticipated when the budget was prepared.
Ref 18. Other assets (current)
Other assets are unfavourable to budget due to lower levels of accrued income and prepayments than what was
anticipated when the budget was prepared.
Ref. 19. Property, Infrastructure Plant and Equipment (non current)
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment is unfavourable to budget due by the value of uncompleted capital works
projects (mainly the Council Office Accommodation project) at 30 June 2014.
Ref. 20. Trade and Other Payables (current)
Trade and other payables are lower than budget at year end due to lower levels of capital works activities during the
2013-14 year and therefore lower amounts outstanding to creditors at year end.
Ref. 21. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Current interest-bearing loans and Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings are respectively lower and higher
than budget due to the budgeted 2013-14 borrowings being taken up nine months later than budgeted and the impact of
that delay on revised repayments of those new borrowings.
Ref 22. Provisions
The variance to budget within current and non-current provisions is due to changes that occurred to Local Government
Long Service Leave (LSL) legislation in February 2012 not being appropriately budgeted. These changes marginally
increased the amount required to be recognised as a provision for LSL as well as how it was to be treated between
current and non-current.
Ref 23. Accumulated Surplus (Equity)
The variance is due the higher than budgeted surplus for the year.
Ref 24. Asset revaluation reserve (Equity)
The variance in Asset revaluation reserve is due to revaluations occurring in the roads asset category during the financial
year while the budget assumed that no asset revaluations would occur during 2013-14.
Ref 25. Other reserves (Equity)
The variance to budget in Other reserves is due to the creation of a new Reserve for future defined benefit
superannuation calls that was not planned for when the budget was prepared.
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Indigo Shire Council
Standard Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2014
2014
Budget
$’000
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Rates and charges
Grants and contributions - operating
Grants and contributions - capital
Interest
User Fees (inclusive of GST)
Statutory fees and fines
Other income
Payments
Employee costs
Materials and consumables
External contracts
Utilities
Other payments
Net Cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment
Repayments of loans and advances (Heritage
and Community Loans)
Deposits
Net Cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Net cash outflow provide by (used in) financing
activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Variance
Actual
$’000

$’000

%

Reference

13,016
4,702
2,507
211
587
764
3,981
25,768

12,398
3,999
6,027
291
801
800
3,905
28,221

(618)
(703)
3,520
80
214
36
(76)

(5%)
(15%)
140%
38%
36%
5%
(2%)

26
27
28
29
30

(10,811)
(3,448)
(3,068)
(622)
(2,887)
(20,836)
4,932

(10,243)
(3,029)
(4,249)
(746)
(2,549)
(20,816)
7,405

568
419
(1,181)
(124)
338

(5%)
(12%)
39%
20%
(12%)

32
33
34
35
36

178

231

53

30%

37

(10,128)

(8,248)

1,880

(19%)

38

10

7

(3)

(30%)

(9,940)

(8,010)

(208)
1,000
(455)

(157)
1,000
(432)

337

411

(4,671)

(194)

6,732
2,061

6,799
6,605

31

1,930
51
23

(24%)
(5%)
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Indigo Shire Council
Standard Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2014
Variance Explanation Report
Ref 26. Rates and charges (Inflow)
The unfavourable variance to budget in rates and charges cashflow is due to a combination of lower than budget rates
and charges collected (as explained at Ref 1) and poorer rate debtor collections during the year (as explained at Ref 15).
Ref 27. Grants and contributions – operating
The unfavourable variance in operating grants and contributions is due to the cessation of the practice to pay Councils
part of the following years Victorian Grants Commission (VGC) funding towards the end of the prior year. In 2013-14,
Indigo Shire (and all other shires) effectively received 50% of a full years VGC funding. The unfavourable VGC
funding variance is offset to some degree by additional operating grant funding received for community care, youth
services, early years co-ordination and extra safer roads funding.
Ref 28. Grants and contributions – capital
The significant favourable variance in capital grants and contributions is due unbudgeted grants received for the Lake
Sambell wall issue ($2.0 million), Lake King Remedial works ($0.5 million), the Beechworth library relocation ($0.26
million), drainage improvement works at Beechworth and Wahgunyah, the Beechworth police paddock stables and the
Baarmutha Park grand stand. Capital contributions are favourable to budget due to various unbudgeted gifted assets
including the Rutherglen water tower (at fair value), developer roads, drains and kerb and channel and the payment of a
sizable developer contribution written off as a bad debt in prior years.
Ref 29. Interest
Interest received is favourable to budget due to delayed delivery of the capital works program leaving greater levels of
cash (compared to budget) available to invest and thus resulting in higher levels of interest received.
Ref 30. User fees
The favourable variance in user fees received is due to higher than budget income from a combination of sub-divisional
fees, food premises inspections within Environmental Health and higher levels of Land Information certificate requests.
Ref 31. Other income
The unfavourable variance to budget in other revenue is due to lower sales value within Buller Gas caused by lower than
budgeted unit rates for LPG.
Ref 32. Employee costs
The favourable variance within employee costs is due to a combination of several senior executive vacancies for an
extended period during the year; delivery of rating services for the full year and tourism management for half the year
being budgeted as an employee but delivered as an external contract service; a number of short term vacancies
throughout the organisation; and higher levels than budgeted for employee leave entitlements at year end.
Ref 33. Materials and consumables
The favourable variance in material and consumable is mostly due to lower LPG purchase value within Buller Gas
caused by lower than budgeted unit rates for LPG. Other factors contributing to the favourable variance are lower fleet
fuel costs (due to large take up of novate leases by senior managers) and significant savings in printing and postage costs
following internal reviews of those functions.
Ref 34. External Contractors
The unfavourable variance in external contractors is due to a combination of additional works within road maintenance
and tree management services; delivery of rating services for the full year and tourism management for half the year as
an external service while being budgeted as an employee; service costs associated the transfer of library services from
the Upper Murray Regional Library service; additional costs to acquit unbudgeted grants received within youth services
and early years co-ordination; higher than budgeted recruitment costs; and the purchase and delivery of the Burke pistol.
Ref 35. Utilities
The unfavourable variance within utilities is due to a combination of a low budget being set for water usage charges
(which was half the prior year’s actual). Mobile phone and internet charges are also over budget but in both cases, less
than the prior year’s actual (suggesting that the budget may have been set low for these items). Electricity charges were
also marginally over budget.

38

Indigo Shire Council Annual Report 2013-14

Indigo Shire Council
Standard Balance Sheet for the year ended 30 June 2014
Ref. 36. Other payments
The main reasons for the favourable variance within other payments are the reduced contribution (versus budget) for the
Upper Murray Regional Library service which transferred to an in house service; net rental savings for the portable
office accommodation for the Yackandandah office; and lower than budgeted legal costs.
Ref 37. Proceeds from property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Proceeds from property, infrastructure, plant and equipment is favourable to budget due higher than expected proceeds
from the sale of several trade vehicles and the clearance of older minor plant at a local CFA clearance sale.
Ref 38. Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment is favourable to budget due by the value of uncompleted
capital works projects (mainly the Council Office Accommodation project) at 30 June 2014.
Ref 39. Finance costs
The 2013-14 Budget assumed that new loans for the year would be taken up early in the financial year to accommodate
the cash flow requirements of the capital works program, particularly the new Council office accommodation project. As
that project and other capital work projects were delayed during the course of the year, the take up of the new
borrowings was also delayed to the end of the financial year and the favourable variance within finance costs reflects the
savings of deferring the take up of the 2013-14 borrowings.
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Indigo Shire Council
Standard Statement of Capital Works for the year ended 30 June 2014

Capital Works Areas
Roads
Drains
Open Space
Buildings
Plant Equipment & Other
Net carry over
Total Capital Works

Represented by:

Asset Renewal
New Assets
Asset Upgrade / expansion
Net carry over
Total Capital Works

Reconciliation of net movement in property,
infrastructure, plant & equipment
(including Intangible assets)

Total Capital Works
Asset revaluation movement
Depreciation & amortisation
Written down value of assets sold
Granted assets
Recognition of previously unrecognised assets
Transferred (to) / from non-current assets held for sale
Net movement in property, infrastructure, plant
& equipment (including intangible assets)

40

Budget
$’000

2014

2,632
725
171
2,918
776
2,906
10,128

2014
Budget
$’000
3,515
334
3,373
2,906
10,128

Budget

2014

Actual
$’000
2,971
627
22
3,465
1,164
8,249

Actual
$’000
3,883
266
4,100
8,249

Actual

Variance
$’000
339
(98)
(149)
547
388
(2,906)
(1,879)

Reference

%
13%
(13%)
(87%)
19%
50%
(100%)
(19%)

40
41
42
43
44

Variance
$’000
368
(68)
727
(2,906)
(1,879)

%
10%
(20%)
22%
100%
(19%)

Variance

$’000

$’000

$’000

%

10,128
1,000
(5,302)
(199)
-

8,249
1,090
(5,123)
(393)

(1,879)
90
179
(194)

(19%)
9%
(3%)
98%

-

300

300

100%

-

(92)

(92)

100%

5,627

4,031

(1,596)

(28%)
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Indigo Shire Council
Standard Statement of Capital Works for the year ended 30 June 2014
Variance Explanation Report
Ref 40. Roads
The variance within Roads is predominantly due to a number of road projects that remained incomplete at the end of the
prior year and were carried forward and completed during the 2013-14 year as well as half the Chiltern flood mitigation
project being fully budgeted as drainage works while 50% of the actual costs was allocated to roads.
Ref 41. Drains
The variance in drains is due to the Chiltern flood mitigation project being fully budgeted as drainage works while 50%
of the actual costs was allocated to roads.
Ref 42. Open Space
The variance within open space is a result of capital project being incorrectly budgeted within this category at budget
time. Actuals for these projects are within the plant & equipment category and the operating budget.
Ref 43. Land & Buildings
The variance within the buildings area is almost entirely due to the additional spend on works for the office
accommodation project which were carried forward as incomplete from 2012-13.
Ref 44. Plant Equipment & Other
The variance within plant, equipment and other is mainly due to the purchase of two new backhoes originally scheduled
towards the end of 2012-13 that were delayed and were purchased early in 2013-14 from the resulting carry forward
funds. The balance of the variance is due to some smaller items that were originally budgeted within open space but
categorised as plant and equipment.
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Indigo Shire Council
Standard Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014
Note 1.

Basis of Preparation of Standard Statements

Council is required to prepare and include audited Standard Statements within its Annual Report.
These statements and supporting notes form a special purpose financial report prepared to meet the requirements of the
Local Government Act 1989 and Local Government (Finance and Reporting) Regulations 2004.
The Standard Statements have been prepared on accounting bases consistent with those used for the General Purpose
Financial Statements and the Budget. The results reported in these statements are consistent with those reported in the
General Purpose Financial Statements.
The Standard Statements are not a substitute for the General Purpose Financial Statements, which are included on pages
44 to 110 of the Annual Report. They have not been prepared in accordance with all Australian Accounting Standards
or other authoritative professional pronouncements.
The Standard Statements compare Council’s financial plan, expressed through its budget, with actual performance. The
Local Government Act 1989 requires explanation of any material variances. The Council has adopted a materiality
threshold of ten per cent or $50,000. Explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality threshold
unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.
The budget figures included in the statements are those adopted by Council on 25 June 2013. The budget was based on
assumptions that were relevant at the time of adoption of the budget. The Council set guidelines and parameters for
revenue and expense targets in this budget in order to meet Council’s business plan and financial performance targets for
both the short and long term. The budget did not reflect any changes to equity resulting from asset revaluations, as their
impacts were not considered predictable.
Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose Financial Statements on pages
44 to 110. The detailed budget can be obtained by contacting Council or through the Council’s website. The Standard
Statements must be read with reference to these documents.
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Indigo Shire Council
Comprehensive Income Statement for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note

Income
Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees
Contributions – cash
Contributions – non-monetary assets
Grants – Operating (recurrent)
Grants – Operating (non- recurrent)
Grants – Capital (recurrent)
Grants – Capital (non- recurrent)
Reimbursements
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Other income

2
3
4
6(a)
6(b)
5
5
5
5
7
8
9

Total Income

Expenses
Employee Costs
Materials and services
Bad and doubtful debts
Depreciation and amortisation
Borrowing costs
Contributions
Other expenses

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

Total expenses
Surplus / (Deficit)
Other comprehensive income
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)
Total Comprehensive Result

29

2014
$

2013
$

12,943,925
799,827
727,939
442,943
300,522
3,474,948
278,541
903,785
4,910,709
119,669
(161,854)
3,860,624

12,052,985
757,242
682,173
459,730
262,308
5,350,530
608,181
772,466
3,742,144
101,443
(7,953)
3,765,671

28,601,578

28,546,920

10,349,654
7,650,918
10,317
5,123,251
157,293
625,775
1,911,828

10,114,373
6,970,015
1,436
5,169,942
140,745
785,995
1,875,620

25,829,036

25,058,126

2,772,542

3,488,794

1,090,260

312,638

3,862,802

3,801,432

The above comprehensive income statement should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Indigo Shire Council
Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2014
Note
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Inventories
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Other assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Trade and other receivables
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets

17
18
19
20
21
22

6,605,072
3,287,177
7,080
195,508
172,537
937,614
11,204,988

6,799,298
2,254,566
7,080
217,719
80,517
684,451
10,043,631

18
23

20,831
188,477,795
188,498,626

42,677
184,446,788
184,489,465

199,703,614

194,533,096

25
26
27
28

2,278,935
209,169
2,279,172
396,262
5,163,538

1,653,026
200,633
2,059,154
431,472
4,344,285

27
28

1,190,111
2,916,963
4,107,074

1,305,386
2,313,225
3,618,611

9,270,612

7,962,896

190,433,002

186,570,200

92,180,556
98,252,446
190,433,002

89,429,285
97,140,915
186,570,200

Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Provisions
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Equity
Accumulated Surplus
Reserves
Total Equity

2013
$

2014
$

29

The above balance sheet should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Indigo Shire Council
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014
Balance at the beginning of the financial year
Comprehensive result
Transfers to other reserves

Total

Accumulated
Surplus

Note

2014
$

2014
$

29
29

186,570,200
3,862,802
-

89,429,285
2,772,542
(21,271)

96,078,374
1,090,260
-

1,062,541
21,271

190,433,002

92,180,556

97,168,634

1,083,812

Total

Accumulated
Surplus

Note

2013
$

2013
$

Asset
Revaluation
Reserve
2013
$

29
29

182,768,768
3,801,432
-

85,457,407
3,488,794
483,084

95,765,736
312,638
-

1,545,625
(483,084)

186,570,200

89,429,285

96,078,374

1,062,541

Balance at the end of the financial year

2013
Balance at the beginning of the financial year
Comprehensive result
Transfers to other reserves
Balance at the end of the financial year

Asset
Revaluation
Reserve
2014
$

Other
Reserves
2014
$

Other
Reserves
2013
$

The above statement of changes in equity should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Indigo Shire Council
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2014
2014
Inflows/(Outflows)
$

2013
Inflows/(Outflows)
$

12,397,939
799,827
4,268,384
457,679
3,753,489
5,814,494
291,271
437,968
(10,243,228)
(10,572,930)
(157,293)

11,912,866
757,242
4,729,807
474,747
5,958,711
4,514,610
249,462
960,855
(9,876,279)
(12,130,554)
(140,745)

30(a)

7,247,600

7,410,722

23

231,333
(8,248,682)
6,995

159,252
(6,895,300)
18,651

(8,010,354)

(6,717,397)

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees and other revenue (inclusive of GST)
Contributions (inclusive of GST)
Grants - Operating
Grants - Capital
Interest
Net GST refund/(payment)
Employee Costs (including redundancies)
Payments to suppliers (inclusive of GST)
Finance costs
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Heritage restoration and community loans
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Finance Costs

28
28

1,000,000
(431,472)

1,000,000
(492,744)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

28

568,528

507,256

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(194,226)

1,200,581

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

6,799,298

5,598,717

6,605,072

6,799,298

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

17

Financing arrangements
Restrictions on cash assets

32
33

The above cash flow statement should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Indigo Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2014
Introduction
The Indigo Shire Council was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 18 November 1994 and is a
body corporate. The Council's main office is located at 101 Ford Street Beechworth.



The purpose of Council is to:
• provide for peace, order and good governance of its municipal district;
• to promote the social, economic and environmental viability and sustainability of the municipal district;
• to ensure that resources are used efficiently and effectively and services are provided in accordance with
the Best Value Principles to best meet the needs of the local community;
• to improve the overall quality of life of people in the local community;
• to promote appropriate business and employment opportunities;
• to ensure that services and facilities provided by the Council are accessible and equitable;
• to ensure the equitable imposition of rates and charges; and
• to ensure transparency and accountability in Council decision making.



External Auditor:
Internal Auditor:
Solicitors:
Bankers:
Website address:

Auditor General of Victoria
Johnson’s MME, Albury
McSwiney’s and Russell Kennedy
Commonwealth Bank
www.indigoshire.vic.gov.au

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance
Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, and notes accompanying these financial statements. The
general purpose financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1989, and the Local Government (Finance
and Reporting) Regulations 2004.



Note 1 Significant accounting policies
a.

Basis of accounting
This financial report has been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis.
This financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except where specifically stated in
notes 1(h), 1(i), 1(t), 1(w) and 1(x).
Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where
appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has
been made of any material changes to comparatives.
All entities controlled by Council that have material assets or liabilities, such as Special Committees of
Management, have been included in this financial report. All transactions between these entities and the
Council have been eliminated in full. Details of entities not included in this financial report based on their
materiality are detailed in note 46.
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Indigo Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2014
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
b. Change in accounting policies
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement
AASB 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements. The fair value measurement
requirements of AASB 13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for
which other A-IFRS require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of AASB 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of AASB 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories or
value in use for impairment assessment purposes).
AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions. Fair value under AASB 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Also, AASB 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.
AASB 13 requires prospective application from 1 January 2013. In addition, specific transitional provisions
were given to entities such that they need not apply the disclosure requirements set out in the Standard in
comparative information provided for periods before the initial application of the Standard. In accordance with
these transitional provisions, Council has not made any new disclosures required by AASB 13 for the 2013
comparative period (please see note 23 disclosures).
Other than the additional disclosures, the application of AASB 13 has not had any material impact on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.
In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
AASB 119 Employee benefits
In the current year, Council has applied AASB 119 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011) and the related
consequential amendments for the first time. AASB 119 changes the definition of short-term employee
benefits. These were previously benefits that were due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period in which the employees render the related service, however, short-term employee benefits are
now defined as benefits expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service. As a result, accrued annual leave balances which
were previously classified by Council as short-term benefits, no longer meet this definition, and are now
classified as long-term benefits. This has resulted in a change of measurement for that portion of annual leave
provision from an undiscounted to discounted basis.
This change in classification has not materially altered Councils measurement of the annual leave provision.
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Indigo Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2014
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
c.

Revenue recognition
Rates, grants and contributions
Rates, grants and contributions (including developer contributions) are recognised as revenues when the
Council obtains control over the assets comprising these receipts.
Control over assets acquired from rates is obtained at the commencement of the rating year, or where earlier,
upon receipt of the rates.
A provision for doubtful debts on rates has not been established as unpaid rates represent a charge against the
rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold.
Control over granted assets is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification
that a grant has been secured,, and are valued at their fair value at the date of transfer.
Income is recognised when the Council obtains control of the contribution or the right to receive the
contribution, it is probable that the economic benefits comprising the contribution will flow to the Council and
the amount of the contribution can be measured reliably.
Where grants and contributions are recognised as revenues during the reporting period on the condition that
they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and those conditions were
undischarged at balance date, the unused grant or contribution is disclosed in note 5. The note also discloses
the amount of unused grant or contribution from prior years that was expended on Council’s operations during
the current year.
Where assets are constructed by private developers (drainage, roads, kerbing and channelling) and these are
controlled by local government on completion, the fair value of those assets are recognised as contributions in
the Comprehensive Income Statement in the accounting period in which the works are completed.
User fees & fines
User fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been
provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.
A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when collection in full is no longer probable.
Sale of property, plant and equipment, infrastructure
The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the
buyer.
Rents
Rents are recognised as revenue when the payment is due or is received, whichever occurs first. Rental
payments received in advance are recognised as pre-payments until they are due.
Interest
Interest is recognised as it is earned.
Dividends
Dividend revenue is recognised when the Council's right to receive payment is established.
Other Income
Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when
Council gains control over the right to receive the income.
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Indigo Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2014
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
d.

Trade and other receivables and inventories
Trade and other receivables
Receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. A provision for doubtful
debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment has occurred.
Inventories
Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential.
Other inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

e.

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment, infrastructure, intangibles
Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, heritage assets, and other assets having
limited useful lives are systematically depreciated over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which
reflects consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining useful lives and
residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates
and methods are reviewed annually.
Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components
are assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each
component.
Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful life.
Artworks are not depreciated.
Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.
Major depreciation periods used are listed below and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated:
Property
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Buildings
Heritage buildings
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Computers & telecommunications
Play equipment
Infrastructure
Roads
Road pavements – formation and drainage
Road pavements – sealed
Road pavements – unsealed
Kerb & channel
Bridges
Timber & steel construction
Reinforced concrete construction
Full timber construction
Culverts
Footpaths and bikepaths
Drainage
Drains
Pipes
Manholes/Pits

Period
5 – 100 years
50-100 years
100-226 years
3- 20 years
3-10 years
3- 9 years
12 years
100 years
1-75 years
15-100 years
25-100 years
80 years
130 years
80 years
130 years
40 years
50-80 years
80 years
20-80 years
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Indigo Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2014
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
f.

Repairs and maintenance
Routine maintenance, repair costs, and minor renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where the repair relates
to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold the cost is
capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is expensed.

g.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where they are
capitalised as part of a qualifying asset constructed by Council. Except where specific borrowings are obtained
for the purpose of specific asset acquisition, the weighted average interest rate applicable to borrowings at
balance date, excluding borrowings associated with superannuation, is used to determine the borrowing costs
to be capitalised.
Borrowing costs include interest on bank overdrafts, interest on borrowings, and finance lease charges.

h.

Recognition and measurement of assets
Acquisition
The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided
as consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition. Fair value is
the amount for which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length
transaction.
Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour,
borrowing costs incurred during construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and
fixed overheads.
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Indigo Shire
Shire Council
Council
Notes to the
the Financial
FinancialReport
Reportforforthetheyear
yearended
ended
3030
June
June
2014
2014
Note 1 Significant
Significant accounting
accountingpolicies
policies(continued)
(continued)
h.

Recognition
Recognitionand
andmeasurement
measurementofofassets
assets(continued)
(continued)
The
The following
following classes
classes ofof assets
assetshave
havebeen
beenrecognised
recognisedininnote
note23.23.In In
accordance
accordance
with
with
Council's
Council's
policy,
policy,
the the
threshold
threshold limits
limits detailed
detailedbelow
belowhave
haveapplied
appliedwhen
whenrecognising
recognising
assets
assets
within
within
an an
applicable
applicable
asset
asset
class
class
andand
unless
unless
otherwise
otherwise stated
statedare
areconsistent
consistentwith
withthe
theprior
prioryear:
year:
Property
Property
Land
Land
Land
Land
Land
Land under
underroads
roads
Land
Land improvements
improvements
Buildings
Buildings
Buildings
Buildings
Heritage
Heritage Buildings
Buildings
Plant
Plant and
and Equipment
Equipment
Plant,
Plant, machinery
machineryand
andequipment
equipment
Fixtures,
Fixtures, fittings
fittingsand
andfurniture
furniture
Computers
Computers&
&telecommunications
telecommunications
Play
Play Equipment
Equipment
Infrastructure
Infrastructure
Roads
Roads
Bridges
Bridges
Footpaths
Footpathsand
andbikepaths
bikepaths
Drainage
Drainage
Intangible
Intangible Assets
Assets
License
License Agreement
Agreement

Threshold
Threshold
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$3,000
$3,000
$3,000
$3,000
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$500
$500
$1,000
$1,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$1,000
$1,000

Revaluation
Revaluation
Subsequent
Subsequent to
to the
the initial
initial recognition
recognitionofofassets,
assets,non-current
non-currentphysical
physicalassets,
assets,
other
other
than
than
plant
plant
andand
equipment,
equipment,
fixtures,
fixtures, fittings
fittings&&furniture
furnitureand
andcomputer
computerequipment
equipmentarearemeasured
measured
at at
their
their
fairfair
value,
value,
being
being
thethe
amount
amount
for for
which
which
the
the assets
assets could
could be
be exchanged
exchangedbetween
betweenknowledgeable
knowledgeablewilling
willing
parties
parties
in in
an an
arms
arms
length
length
transaction.
transaction.
At balance
At balance
date,
date, the
the Council
Council reviewed
reviewedthe
thecarrying
carryingvalue
valueofofthe
theindividual
individual
classes
classes
of of
assets
assets
measured
measured
at fair
at fair
value
value
to ensure
to ensure
that
that each
each asset
asset materially
materiallyapproximated
approximateditsitsfair
fairvalue.
value.Where
Where
thethe
carrying
carrying
value
value
materially
materially
differed
differed
from
from
the the
fair fair
value
value at
at balance
balancedate
datethe
theclass
classofofasset
assetwas
wasrevalue.
revalue.
Fair
Fair value
value valuations
valuationsare
aredetermined
determinedininaccordance
accordancewith
witha valuation
a valuation
hierarchy.
hierarchy.Changes
Changes
to the
to the
valuation
valuation
hierarchy
hierarchy
will
will only
only occur
occur ifif an
anexternal
externalchange
changeininthe
therestrictions
restrictionsororlimitations
limitations
of of
useuse
onon
an an
asset
asset
result
result
in changes
in changes
to the
to the
permissible
permissible or
or practical
practicalhighest
highestand
andbest
bestuse
useofofthe
theasset.
asset.More
More
details
details
about
about
thethe
valuation
valuation
techniques
techniques
andand
inputs
inputs
used
used in
in determining
determining the
thefair
fairvalue
valueofofnon-financial
non-financialphysical
physicalassets
assets
areare
discussed
discussed
in in
Note
Note
23 23
Property
Property
Plant
Plant
andand
Equipment.
Equipment.
In addition,
addition, Council
Councilundertakes
undertakesaaformal
formalrevaluation
revaluationofofland,
land,
buildings,
buildings,
andand
infrastructure
infrastructure
assets
assets
on on
a regular
a regular
basis
basis
every
every 33 to
to 44 years.
years.The
Thevaluation
valuationisisperformed
performedeither
eitherbyby
experienced
experienced
Council
Council
officers
officers
or independent
or independent
experts.
experts.
Where
Where the
the assets
assets are
are revalue,
revalue,the
therevaluation
revaluationincrements
incrementsarearecredited
credited
directly
directly
to to
thethe
asset
asset
revaluation
revaluation
reserve
reserve
except
except to
to the
the extent
extent that
that an
anincrement
incrementreverses
reversesa aprior
prioryear
yeardecrement
decrement
forfor
thatthat
class
class
of of
asset
asset
thatthat
hadhad
beenbeen
recognised
recognised as
as an
an expense
expenseininwhich
whichcase
casethe
theincrement
incrementis isrecognised
recognised
as as
revenue
revenue
up up
to the
to the
amount
amount
of the
of the
expense.
expense.
Revaluation
Revaluation decrements
decrements are
arerecognised
recognisedasasananexpense
expenseexcept
exceptwhere
where
prior
prior
increments
increments
areare
included
included
in the
in the
asset
asset
revaluation
revaluation reserve
reserve for
forthat
thatclass
classofofasset
assetininwhich
whichcase
casethethedecrement
decrement
is is
taken
taken
to to
thethe
reserve
reserve
to the
to the
extent
extent
of the
of the
remaining
remaining increments.
increments. Within
Withinthe
thesame
sameclass
classofofassets,
assets,revaluation
revaluation
increments
increments
andand
decrements
decrements
within
within
the the
yearyear
are are
offset.
offset.
Land
Land under
under roads
roads
Council
Council recognised
recognisedthe
thevalue
valueofofland
landunder
underroads
roadsit itcontrolled
controlled
asas
at at
3030
June
June
2008
2008
at fair
at fair
value.
value.
Land
Land
under
under
roads
roads
acquired
acquired after
after30
30June
June2008
2008isisbrought
broughttotoaccount
accountusing
usingthethe
fair
fair
value
value
basis.
basis.
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Indigo Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2014
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
i.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call,
and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts.

j.

Financial assets
Financial assets represent shares held in the MAPS Group Ltd. Shares are held at cost. No managed funds are
held by Council.

k.

Investments
Investments, other than investments in associates, are measured at cost.

l.

Accounting for Investments in associates
Council holds no investment in associates.

m.

Tender deposits
Amounts received as tender deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as Trust
funds until they are returned or forfeited (refer to note 26).

n.

Employee benefits
Wages and salaries
Liabilities for wages and salaries and accumulated time are recognised and are measured as the amount unpaid
at balance date and include appropriate oncosts such as workers compensation and payroll costs.
Annual leave
Annual leave entitlements are accrued on a pro rata basis in respect of services provided by employees up to
balance date.
Annual leave expected to be paid within 12 months is measured at nominal value based on the amount,
including appropriate oncosts, expected to be paid when settled.
Annual leave expected to be paid later than one year has been measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows to be made for these accrued entitlements. Commonwealth bond rates are used for
discounting future cash flows.
Long service leave
Long service leave entitlements payable are assessed at balance date having regard to expected employee
remuneration rates on settlement, employment related oncosts and other factors including accumulated years of
employment, on settlement, and experience of employee departure per year of service. Long service leave
expected to be paid within 12 months is measured at nominal value based on the amount expected to be paid
when settled. Long service leave expected to be paid later than one year has been measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for these accrued entitlements. Commonwealth bond
rates are used for discounting future cash flows.
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Note 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
n.

Employee benefits (continued)
Classification of employee benefits
An employee benefit liability is classified as a current liability if the Council does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the period. This would include all
annual leave and unconditional long service leave entitlements.
Superannuation
The amount charged to the Comprehensive Operating Statement in respect of superannuation represents
contributions made or due by Indigo Shire Council to the relevant superannuation plans in respect to the
services of Indigo Shire Council’s staff (both past and present). Superannuation contributions are made to the
plans based on the relevant rules of each plan and any relevant compulsory superannuation requirements that
Indigo Shire Council is required to comply with.
Retirement gratuities
Council has no retirement gratuities liability.

o.

Leases
Finance leases
Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the asset, but not the
legal ownership, are transferred to the Council are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised,
recording an asset and a liability at the lower of fair value of the asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, including any guaranteed residual value. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction
of the lease liability and the interest expense. Leased assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives to the Council where it is likely that the Council will obtain ownership of the asset or
over the term of the lease, whichever is the shorter.
Operating leases
Lease payments for operating leases are required by the accounting standard to be recognised on a straight line
basis, rather than expensed in the years in which they are incurred.
Leasehold improvements
Leasehold improvements are recognised at cost and are amortised over the unexpired period of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is the shorter. At balance date, Council has no leasehold
improvements.
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Indigo Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2014
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
p.

Allocation between current and non-current
In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given to the time
when each asset or liability is expected to be settled. The asset or liability is classified as current if it is
expected to be settled within the next twelve months, being the Council's operational cycle, or if the Council
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date.

q.

Agreements equally proportionately unperformed
The Council does not recognise assets and liabilities arising from agreements that are equally proportionately
unperformed in the balance sheet. Such agreements are recognised on an 'as incurred' basis.

r.

Web site costs
Costs in relation to websites are charged as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

s.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the
balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST.
Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST component of
investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

t.

Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the assets
carrying value. Any excess of the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the
Comprehensive Income Statement, unless the asset is carried at the revalue amount in which case, the
impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to
the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of
asset.

u.

Rounding
Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest dollars. Figures in the
financial statement may not equate due to rounding.

v.

Non-current assets held for sale
A non-current asset held for sale is measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell
and are not subject to depreciation.
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Note 2 Rates and charges
Council uses Capital Improved Valuation basis as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district.
The capital improved value is the value of the land plus any improvements.
The Valuation Base used to calculate general rates for 2013/14 was $2,615 million (2012-2013 $2,607 million). The
2013/2014 rate in the dollar for the general residential base was 0.003450 (2012-13 - 0. 003255)

Residential
Commercial/Industrial
Farm/Rural
Municipal Charge
Garbage & Recycling Charges

2014
$

2013
$

5,194,167
667,001
2,820,261
2,036,115
2,226,381
12,943,925

4,830,972
628,753
2,651,095
1,911,042
2,031,123
12,052,985

The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January 2014,
and the valuation will be first applied to the rating year commencing 1 July 2014.
The date of the previous general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January
2012, and the valuation first applied to the rating period commencing 1 July 2012.

Note 3 Statutory fees and fines
Building permits and applications
Planning permits and applications
Fines
Land information certificates
Registrations
State Revenue Office – Revaluation
Carlyle Cemetery
Subdivision supervision
Other fees

188,466
103,913
77,376
37,985
269,750
31,395
33,119
57,823
799,827

164,433
79,018
73,673
23,927
255,748
79,700
28,205
4,785
47,753
757,242

201,117
104,228
107,150
79,597
71,877
85,903
78,067
727,939

183,066
88,439
101,535
75,371
64,411
77,284
92,067
682,173

Note 4 User fees
Heritage Precinct and Burke Museum
Delivered Meals
Swimming Pools – Council
Home Care
Waste Disposal Sites
Rental
Other fees
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2014
$

2013
$

Summary of grants
Federally funded grants
State funded grants
Other
Total Grants

3,065,002
6,251,525
251,456
9,567,983

857,425
9,557,668
58,228
10,473,321

Recurrent
Non Recurrent
Total Grants

4,252,348
5,315,635
9,567,983

6,122,996
4,350,325
10,473,321

Operating Grants
Recurrent
Non- Recurrent
Total Operating Grants

3,474,948
278,541
3,753,489

5,350,530
608,181
5,958,711

Capital Grants
Recurrent
Non- Recurrent
Total Capital Grants

903,785
4,910,709
5,814,494

772,466
3,742,144
4,514,610

Total Grants

9,567,983

10,473,321

Operating Grants – Recurrent
Victorian Grants Commission – Unallocated
Victoria Grants Commission - Local roads
School Crossing Supervisors
Youth Support Services
Home Care
Personal Care
Minor Works & equipment
Maternal & Child Health
Property Maintenance
Respite ( Home & Community )
Service System Resourcing
Centre Based Meals
Volunteer Co-Ordination
Assessment - Aged Services
Community Building Initiative
Delivered Meals
Senior Citizens Week
Immunisation
Respite ( Disability Services )
Freeza Events
SES Grants
National Youth Week Funding
Vic Roads
Heritage Advisor
Library Operations Grant
Other
Total Operating Grants - Recurrent

1,315,375
845,842
8,740
59,500
378,825
75,888
9,410
125,310
32,074
21,118
66,489
14,772
49,475
56,541
28,032
2,200
67,107
24,500
38,974
9,970
23,100
137,544
84,162
3,474,948

2,722,158
1,502,431
8,322
35,000
419,794
61,158
15,000
121,354
31,444
20,703
80,872
14,482
48,507
55,409
56,810
14,935
3,636
2,694
63,859
21,970
38,022
2,000
9,970
5,350,530

Note 5 Grants
Grants were received in respect of the following :
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Note 5 Grants (continued)

2014
$

2013
$

Operating Grants – Non-recurrent
Tobacco Plan
DPCD - Community Strengthening Project
Regional Development Victoria – Grants
DSE - Roadside Partnership Program
DPCD - Weed Control Project
Fire Emergency Management
Other Grants

8,718
13,650
33,000
20,000
33,470
120,000
49,703

5,514
28,465
27,609
25,000
33,470
191,632
296,491

Total Operating Grants – Non-recurrent

278,541

608,181

3,753,489

5,958,711

Capital Grants – Recurrent
Commonwealth Government - Roads to recovery

903,785

772,466

Total Capital Grants - Recurrent

903,785

772,466

Capital Grants – Non- Recurrent
Capital Grants – Roads and Bridge Initiative
DSE Grants Drainage
DPCD – Grants
DEECD - Grant Kindergarten Upgrade
Regional Development Victoria – Grants
Vic Roads - Flood Damage Recovery
DTF- Flood Damage
Capital Grants – Other

1,000,000
2,513,000
257,000
400,418
680,501
59,790

1,000,000
240,000
1,401,728
293,602
487,220
267,624
12,825
39,145

Total Capital Grants – Non-recurrent

4,910,709

3,742,144

Total Capital Grants

5,814,494

4,514,610

22,460
2,442,642
2,465,102

19,551
1,456,889
31,994
28,912
56,046
16,250
1,609,642

Total Operating Grants

Conditions on Grants
Grants recognised as revenue during the year that were obtained on condition that
they be expended in a specified manner that had not occurred at balance date were:
Community Planning
Capital Works
Tourism
Conservation & Natural Resources
Corporate Services
Emergency Recovery – Operations
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Note 5 Grants (continued)

2014
$

2013
$

Community Planning
Capital Works
Tourism
Conservation & Natural Resources
Corporate Services
Emergency Recovery – Operations

19,551
1,447,827
25,239
28,912
56,046
16,250
1,593,825

73,804
1,672,186
20,928
11,649
8,469
15,623
1,802,659

Net increase (decrease) in restricted assets resulting from grant revenues for the year:

1,884,129

(193,017)

58,605
79,824
304,514
442,943

42,892
127,279
289,559
459,730

16,800
21,630
51,871
431
67,156
142,634
300,522

104,543
21,860
84,123
3,267
48,515
262,308

743,465

722,038

51,994
67,675
119,669

14,211
87,232
101,443

Grants which were recognised as revenue in prior years and were expended
during the current year in the manner specified by the grantor were:

Note 6 Contributions
(a) Cash
Open Space Contributions
Capital Contributions
Other
(b) Non-monetary assets
Pathways
Kerb & Channel
Roads
Land under Roads
Drainage
Buildings

Total Contributions
Note 7 Reimbursements
Fuel rebate
Other
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2014
$

2013
$

Note 8 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure,
plant and equipment
Plant & Equipment (including Leased plant)
Proceeds from sale of assets
Written down value of assets sold
Gain / (loss) from assets sold

148,776
(268,475)
(119,699)

55,752
(56,765)
(1,013)

Disposed asset (Land & Building)
Proceeds from disposal
Written down value of assets disposed
Gain / (loss) from disposed assets

82,557
(124,712)
(42,155)

103,500
(110,440)
(6,940)

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

(161,854)

(7,953)

217,545
73,726
443,225
73,516
39,309
68,111
2,365,209
160,998
112,158
306,827
3,860,624

208,638
40,824
417,664
71,830
37,773
4,359
2,436,524
135,256
94,022
318,781
3,765,671

7,683,839
863,091
240,140
693,637
353,857
7,283
507,807
10,349,654

7,575,597
838,012
235,213
597,341
357,827
9,636
500,747
10,114,373

Note 9 Other income
Interest
Interest on rates
Sale of Quarry Material
Merchandise Sales
Sale of Recyclables
Advertising
Buller gas sales
Home Care - private
Building services – private
Other

Note 10 Employee costs
Wages and salaries
Annual leave and long service leave
Sick leave
Superannuation
Fringe benefits tax and work cover
Redundancy
Other staff costs
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Note 11 Materials and services
Waste Collection
Gas purchases – Mt Buller
Utilities
Fuel
Road Maintenance
Rate Services
Tree Services
Quarry Services
Transfer Stations
Building Maintenance
Delivered Meals
Public Toilets
Other

2014
$

2013
$

1,335,103
1,665,507
678,398
358,930
344,659
242,497
189,350
154,232
141,913
122,484
100,304
85,944
2,231,597
7,650,918

1,223,947
1,675,029
666,809
379,807
251,272
50,078
174,101
133,613
97,722
153,690
88,259
88,106
1,987,582
6,970,015

10,317
10,317

1,436
1,436

188,997
232,297

187,344
232,296

135,763
868,520

134,464
870,228

457,083
26,431
62,282
109,212
13,523
22,488
91,711

479,227
26,430
70,055
137,572
1,533
22,219
90,751

2,462,552
137,909
165,673
148,810

2,387,877
137,537
164,378
148,049

5,123,251

79,982
5,169,942

Note 12 Bad and doubtful debts
Rates debtors
Sundry debtors

Note 13 Depreciation and amortisation
Property
Land
Recreation and sporting reserves
Land improvements
Buildings
Heritage buildings
Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Leased plant and equipment
Fixtures, furniture and fittings
Computers and telecommunications
Library Books
Street furniture
Playground equipment
Infrastructure
Roads
Footpaths
Bridges
Drainage & culverts
Intangible Assets
Buller Gas Licence
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Note 14 Finance costs
Interest – borrowings
Interest – finance leases

2014
$

2013
$

156,673

138,528

620
157,293

2,217
140,745

70,162
221,989
218,475
77,948
21,244
15,957
625,775

147,456
202,877
250,088
76,044
95,356
14,174
785,995

62,732
178,605
34,108
184,240
120,699
435,886
239,538
50,889
605,131
1,911,828

62,210
170,151
29,193
145,921
114,406
461,623
317,517
65,404
509,195
1,875,620

2,860
105,903
6,496,309
6,605,072

2,850
1,796,448
5,000,000
6,799,298

1,002,912
8,984
16,130
1,877,678
278,839
126,742
(24,108)
3,287,177

530,733
12,304
15,475
1,104,577
547,082
212,345
(167,950)
2,254,566

Note 15 Contributions
Library Services
Contributions to Community Bodies and Committees
Contributions to Tourism Bodies
Emergency Services
Regional Services / Other Councils
Contributions to Others
Total contributions

Note 16 Other Expenses
Auditor’s remuneration
Councillors allowances
External plant hire
Plant and fleet repairs
Advertising
Insurances
Operating lease rentals
Bank charges
Other
Total Other expenses

Note 17 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Term Deposits
Users of the financial report should refer to Note 33 for details of restrictions on
cash assets and note 35 for details of existing Council commitments.

Note 18 Trade and other receivables
Current
Rates debtors
Special Rates
Loans and advances to community organisations
Grants - State Government Departments
Other debtors
Net GST Receivable
Less: Provision for doubtful debts
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Note 18 Trade and other receivables (continued)
Non-current
Special Rates
Loans and advances to community organisations
Other receivables

2014

2013

$

$
14,535
6,296
20,831

12,899
29,253
525
42,677

7,080

7,080

7,018

1,495

109,910
78,020
560
195,508

129,137
86,276
811
217,719

80,517

80,517

92,020
172,537

80,517

(42,155)

-

Note 19 Financial assets
MAPS Shares at cost

Note 20 Inventories
Inventories for distribution
Inventories for sale – Gas
Everton Quarry – Gravel
Carlyle Cemetery

Note 21 Assets held for sale
Opening value of non-current assets classified as held for sale
Transferred to / from non-current assets (Property, infrastructure, Plant & equip
Written down value of assets sold
Carrying value at balance date
a)

The non-current assets classified as held for sale as at balance date are all
industrial land allotments. This represents two allotments at the
Yackandandah Steel Road industrial estate which Council reasonable
expects to sell in the coming 12 months.

b) Council sold one industrial allotments during the 2013-14 financial year
which was not held as an Asset held for sale at the previous balance date.
The details for that sale are therefore contained at Note 8, Net gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment under property disposal.
All remaining industrial allotments have been placed with a local real estate
agent for sale at commercial rates. Council reasonably expects to sell two
industrial allotments during the 2014-15 financial year.
c) Gain / (loss) recognised and forming part of Note 8

Assets held for sale are carried at fair value less cost of disposal. The following table provides Councils fair value
measurement hierarchy for assets held for sale:






Industrial land

172,537


(1)

         







172,537

– Classified in accordance with fair value hierarchy – see note 23

Note 22 Other assets
Current
Prepayments
Accrued income

196,200
741,414
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Note 23 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Summary
At cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2009
At Fair Value 30 June 2012
At Fair Value 30 June 2013
At Fair Value 30 June 2014
Less accumulated depreciation
Total
Property
Land
At cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2012
Land under roads
At Cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2012
Land Improvements
At Cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2009
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings
At Cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2012
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings – Heritage
At Cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2012
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Recreation Grounds
At Cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2009
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Property

2014
$

2013
$

18,051,528
5,589,370
112,807,066
19,712,877
133,321,942
(101,004,988)
188,477,795

13,128,686
5,589,370
113,023,799
151,856,838
(99,151,905)
184,446,788

39,294
9,757,090
9,796,384

9,973,822
9,973,822

3,698
65,185
68,883

3,267
65,185
68,452

1,646,751
523,424
(815,229)
1,354,946

1,636,117
523,424
(582,932)
1,576,609

1,274,715
53,128,821
(23,858,132)
30,545,404

377,446
53,128,821
(22,851,994)
30,654,273

241,125
26,346,725
(16,407,882)
10,179,968

103,957
26,346,725
(16,272,119)
10,178,563

1,207,217
3,825,230
(2,521,951)
2,510,496

1,207,217
3,825,230
(2,332,954)
2,699,493

54,456,081

55,151,212

Fair value assessments have been performed at 30 June 2014 for land and buildings. This assessment demonstrated that
fair value was materially similar to carrying value, and therefore a full revaluation was not required this year. The next
scheduled full revaluation for this purpose will be conducted in 2014-2015.
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Note 23 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$

$

$

Land – non specialised
Land - specialised
Land under roads
Land Improvements

-

899,596
-

Buildings – non specialised

-

593,213

Recreation grounds

Buildings – specialised

-

Total
No transfers between levels occurred during the year

-

8,857,494
65,185
381,378
1,597,435
-

-

39,180,689

1,492,809

50,082,181
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Note 23 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
At Cost
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Leased plant and equipment
At Cost
Less: Accumulated Amortisation
Fixtures, fittings & furniture
At Cost
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Computers and telecommunications
At cost
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Artwork and Heritage Collection
At Fair Value 30 June 2012
Library Books
At cost
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Playground equipment
At Cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2009
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Street Furniture
At Cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2009
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Plant and Equipment

70

2013
$

2014
$
5,242,686
(3,003,415)
2,239,271

4,825,633
(2,897,570)
1,928,063

-

365,556
(185,014)
180,542

1,162,242
(978,356)
183,886

1,146,644
(916,074)
230,570

1,451,524
(1,175,406)
276,118

1,322,288
(1,066,194)
256,094

3,217,050
3,217,050

3,217,050
3,217,050

153,730
(15,056)
138,674

63,807
(1,533)
62,274

119,982
995,816
(923,919)
191,879

82,081
995,816
(832,208)
245,689

303,533
244,900
(192,176)
356,257

295,147
244,900
(169,688)
370,359

6,603,135

6,490,641
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Note 23 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)

Artwork and Heritage Collection
Playground equipment
Street Furniture

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$

$

$

-

Total
No transfers between levels occurred during the year

-

3,217,050
107,458
98,145

-

3,422,653
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2014
$

Note 23 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)
Infrastructure
Roads
At Fair Value 30 June 2013
At Fair Value 30 June 2014
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

133,321,942
(37,940,257)
95,381,685

132,080,154
(38,322,804)
93,757,350

94,321
4,907,867
(1,837,019)
3,165,169

4,907,867
(1,699,110)
3,208,757

349,389
20,292,195
(7,079,826)
13,561,758

29,688
20,292,195
(6,914,153)
13,407,730

602,606
14,805,010
(4,256,364)
11,151,252

14,805,010
(4,107,557)
10,697,453

123,259,864

121,071,290

Footpaths
At cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2013
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Bridges and Culverts
At Cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2012
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Stormwater Drainage
At cost
At Fair Value 30 June 2013
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Infrastructure

2013
$

Roads were revalued as at 30 June 2014 and are therefore presented at Fair Value. For all other infrastructure
categories, fair value assessments have been performed at 30 June 2014. This assessment demonstrated that fair value
was materially similar to carrying value for these categories, and therefore a full revaluation was not required for them
this year. The next scheduled full revaluation for this purpose will be conducted in 2014-15.

Roads
Footpaths and cycleways
Bridges
Drainage

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$

$

$

-

Total
No transfers between levels occurred during the year

72

-

95,381,685
3,071,220
13,213,865
10,549,403

-

122,216,173
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Note 23 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)
Works in Progress
Buildings at Cost
Roads at Cost
Bridges at Cost
Other at Cost
Total property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

2014
$

2013
$

3,747,648
63,860
347,207
4,158,715

1,104,593
400,621
10,730
217,701
1,733,645

188,477,795

184,446,788

Valuation basis
Non-specialised land, non-specialised buildings
Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings are valued using the market based direct comparison method.
Under this valuation method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assets which
are considered to have nominal or no added improvement value.
For non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings, an independent valuation was performed by Simon Fisher
(FAPI CPV SRV) to determine the fair value using the market based direct comparison method. Valuation of the assets
was determined by analysing comparable sales and allowing for share, size, topography, location and other relevant
factors specific to the asset being valued. From the sales analysed, an appropriate rate per square metre has been applied
to the subject asset. The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2012. To the extent that non-specialised land and
non-specialised buildings do not contain significant, unobservable adjustments, these assets are classified as Level 2
under the market based direct comparison approach.
Specialised land and specialised buildings
The market based direct comparison method is also used for specialised land although is adjusted to reflect the
specialised nature of the assets being valued. For Council specialised buildings, the depreciated replacement cost
method is used, adjusting for the associated depreciations. Specialised assets contain significant, unobservable
adjustments, therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 fair value measurements.
An adjustment is made to reflect a restriction on the sale or use of an asset by Council. The adjustment is an allowance
made to reflect the difference in value between unrestricted assets and those held by the Council which are impacted by
external restraints on their use.
An independent valuation of Council’s specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by Simon Fisher
(FAPI CPV SRV). The valuation was performed using either the market based direct comparison method or
depreciated replacement cost, adjusted for restrictions in use. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2012.
Land improvements
and improvements are valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. This cost represents the replacement cost
of the improvements / component after applying depreciation rates on a useful life basis. Replacement costs relate to
costs to replace the property to an “as new” standard. Economic obsolescence has also been factored into the
depreciated replacement cost calculation. Land improvements contain significant, unobservable adjustments and
therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 fair value measurements.
A valuation of Council’s land improvement assets was performed by Robert Uebergang, BE, DipURP, BSc, Indigo
Shire’s Asset Manager with an effective date of 30June 2009.
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Land Under Roads
Land under roads is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or unserviced)
characteristics, access rights and private interests of other parties and entitlements of infrastructure assets and services.
This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation and therefore these assets are classified as Level 3.
The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement. An independent valuation using this method
was performed by Simon Fisher (FAPI CPV SRV) with an effective date of 30 June 2012.
Recreational grounds
Recreational grounds are valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. This cost represents the replacement
cost of the grounds and facilities after applying depreciation rates on a useful life basis. Replacement costs relate to
costs to replace the property to an “as new” standard. Economic obsolescence has also been factored into the
depreciated replacement cost calculation. Recreational grounds contain significant, unobservable adjustments, therefore
these assets are classified as Level 3 fair value measurements.
A valuation of Council’s recreational ground assets was performed by Robert Uebergang, BE, DipURP, BSc, Indigo
Shire’s Asset Manager with an effective date of 30 June 2009.
Playground equipment and Street furniture
Playground equipment and Street furniture are valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. This cost
represents the replacement cost of the installations after applying depreciation rates on a useful life basis. Replacement
costs relate to costs to replace the property to an “as new” standard. Economic obsolescence has also been factored into
the depreciated replacement cost calculation. Playground equipment and street furniture contain significant,
unobservable adjustments, therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 fair value measurements.
A valuation of Council’s playground and street furniture assets was performed by Robert Uebergang, BE, DipURP,
BSc, Indigo Shire’s Asset Manager with an effective date of 30 June 2009.
Artwork and Heritage Collection
The market based direct comparison method is used for artwork and heritage collection although is adjusted to reflect
the specialised nature of the assets being valued.
An adjustment made to reflect a restriction on the sale or use of these asset by Council. The adjustment is an allowance
made to reflect the difference in value between unrestricted assets and those held by the Council which are impacted by
external restraints on their use. Artwork and heritage collection assets contain significant, unobservable adjustments,
therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 fair value measurements.
An independent valuation of Council’s artwork and heritage collection was performed Warren Joel AVAA
Certified Practising Valuer No. 408 and Wally Caruana Specialising in valuing Indigenous Australian Art. The
valuation was performed using either the market based direct comparison method or depreciated replacement cost,
adjusted for restrictions in use. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2012.
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Note 23 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)
Infrastructure
Infrastructure is valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. This cost represents the replacement cost of the
building/component after applying depreciation rates on a useful life basis. Replacement costs relate to costs to replace
the property to an “as new” standard. Economic obsolescence has also been factored into the depreciated replacement
cost calculation.
Where it has not been possible to examine hidden works such as structural frames and floors, the use of reasonable
materials and methods of construction have been assumed bearing in mind the age and nature of the building. The
estimated cost of reconstruction including structure services and finishes, also factors in any heritage classifications as
applicable. Infrastructure assets contain significant unobservable adjustments, therefore these assets are classified as
Level 3.
A valuation of Council’s, infrastructure assets was performed by Robert Uebergang, BE, DipURP, BSc, Indigo Shire’s
Asset Manager. The valuation was performed based on the depreciated replacement cost of the assets. The effective
date of the valuation for the various infrastructure components are as follows.
Roads
Footpaths and cycleways
Bridges
Drainage

30 June 2014
30 June 2013
30 June 2012
30 June 2013

There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2014.
For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
Land
Under
Roads
$

Artwork &
Heritage
Collection
$

Specialised
Land & Land
Improvements
$

Specialised
Buildings
$

9,251,805

40,165,591

65,185

1,734,854

3,217,050

(12,933)

(984,902)

-

(137,419)

-

Impairment Loss

-

-

-

-

-

Revaluation

-

-

-

-

Acquisitions / (Disposals)

-

-

-

-

Transfers

-

-

-

9,238,872

39,180,689

65,185

2014

Opening Balance
Depreciation

Closing Balance

Street
Furniture
$

Infrastructure
$

190,421

108,780

121,041,702

(82,963)

(10,635)

(2,912,417)

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,090,260

-

-

-

2,996,628

-

-

-

-

-

1,597,435

3,217,050

107,458

98,145

122,216,173

Recreational
Grounds
$

Playground
equipment
$
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Note2323Property,
Property,
infrastructure,
plant
equipment
(continued)
Note
infrastructure,
plant
andand
equipment
(continued)
Description
significant
unobservable
inputs
3 valuations
Description
of of
significant
unobservable
inputs
intointo
levellevel
3 valuations
Valuation
Significant
Range
Valuation
Significant
Range
(weighted
Average)
(weighted
Average)
Technique
Unobservable
Inputs
Sensitivity
Technique
Unobservable
Inputs
Sensitivity
Specialised Market
Specialised
Market
based
directExtent
based
direct
Extent
and impact
$1 - $200/m2 Increase
Increase
or decrease
in the of
extent
of restriction
and impact
of of
$1 - $200/m2
or decrease
in the extent
restriction
Land
Land
andand
comparison
comparison
restriction
of use
result
in a significantly
higher
lower fair
restriction
of use
wouldwould
result in
a significantly
higher or
lowerorfair
($13.75)
($13.75)
Land
Land
approach
(refer
approach
(refer
value.value.
Improvements above)
Improvements
above)
Specialised
Specialised
Buildings
Buildings

Depreciated
Direct
Depreciated
Direct
cost cost
per per
Replacement
square
metre
Replacement
CostCost square
metre

- $500/m2Increase
Increase
or decrease
in thecost
direct
per square
$250$250
- $500/m2
or decrease
in the direct
percost
square
($378) metre metre
adjustment
in a significantly
($378)
adjustment
would would
result inresult
a significantly
or fair
lower
fair value.
higherhigher
or lower
value.

226 years Increase
50 – 50
226–years
Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
of life of
Useful
life of
Useful
life of
thewould
asset would
result
in a significantly
higher or
the asset
result in
a significantly
higher or
specialised
buildings
specialised
buildings
fair value.
lower lower
fair value.
Land
Under
Land
Under
Roads
Roads

Market
based
directExtent
Market
based
direct
Extent
and impact
and impact
of of
$1.50$1.50
/ sqm/ sqm
comparison
comparison
restriction
of use
restriction
of use
approach
(refer
approach
(refer
above)
above)

Recreational Depreciated
Depreciated
Direct
Recreational
Direct
cost cost
per per
Grounds
Replacement
square
metre
Grounds
Replacement
CostCost square
metre
Useful
life of
Useful
life of
facilities
facilities

Increase
or decrease
in the of
extent
of restriction
Increase
or decrease
in the extent
restriction
result
in a significantly
higher
lower fair
wouldwould
result in
a significantly
higher or
lowerorfair
value.value.

Increase
or decrease
in thecost
direct
per square
$61 -$61
$80-/ $80
m2 / m2 Increase
or decrease
in the direct
percost
square
adjustment
in a significantly
metre metre
adjustment
would would
result inresult
a significantly
($70)($70)
or fair
lower
fair value.
higherhigher
or lower
value.
2050 years
20- 50
years

Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful
Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
of life of
thewould
asset would
result
in a significantly
higher or
the asset
result in
a significantly
higher or
fair value.
lower lower
fair value.

Artwork
Market
based
directExtent
Artwork
andand Market
based
direct
Extent
and impact
- $250,000Increase
Increase
or decrease
in the of
extent
of restriction
and impact
of of
$500$500
- $250,000
or decrease
in the extent
restriction
Heritage
comparison
Heritage
comparison
restriction
ofper
use per ($8,193)
($8,193) wouldwould
result
in a significantly
higher
lower fair
restriction
of use
result in
a significantly
higher or
lowerorfair
Collections approach
approach
(refer itemitem
Collections
(refer
value.value.
above)
above)
Play
Play
Equipment
Equipment

Depreciated
Direct
per Unit$1,800
Depreciated
Direct
cost cost
per Unit
$1,800
- $40,000Increase
Increase
or decrease
in thecost
direct
per square
- $40,000
or decrease
in the direct
percost
square
Replacement
(dependant
on size)
Replacement
CostCost (dependant
on size)
($12,448) metre metre
adjustment
in a significantly
($12,448)
adjustment
would would
result inresult
a significantly
or fair
lower
fair value.
higherhigher
or lower
value.
Useful
life of
Useful
life of
facilities
facilities

Street
Street
Furniture
Furniture

Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful
Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
of life of
thewould
asset would
result
in a significantly
higher or
the asset
result in
a significantly
higher or
fair value.
lower lower
fair value.

Depreciated
Direct
per Unit$300$300
- $10,000 Increase
Increase
or decrease
in thecost
direct
per square
Depreciated
Direct
cost cost
per Unit
- $10,000
or decrease
in the direct
percost
square
Replacement
($3,140) metre metre
adjustment
in a significantly
Replacement
CostCost
($3,140)
adjustment
would would
result inresult
a significantly
or fair
lower
fair value.
higherhigher
or lower
value.
Useful
life of
Useful
life of
facilities
facilities

76

12 years
12 years

– 25 years. Increase
Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful
10 – 10
25 years.
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
of life of
thewould
asset would
result
in a significantly
higher or
the asset
result in
a significantly
higher or
fair value.
lower lower
fair value.
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IndigoShire
ShireCouncil
Council
Indigo
Notestotothe
theFinancial
Financial
Report
Notes
Report
for year
the year
ended
30 June
for the
ended
30 June
2014 2014
Note2323Property,
Property,
infrastructure,
plant
equipment
(continued)
Note
infrastructure,
plant
andand
equipment
(continued)
Description
significant
unobservable
inputs
3 valuations
(continued)
Description
of of
significant
unobservable
inputs
intointo
levellevel
3 valuations
(continued)
Valuation
Valuation
Technique
Technique

Significant
Range
Significant
Range
(weighted
Average)
(weighted
Average)
Unobservable
Inputs
Sensitivity
Unobservable
Inputs
Sensitivity

Infrastructure
Infrastructure
Depreciated
Depreciated
Roads
per unit
Roads
CostCost
per unit
Replacement
Replacement
CostCost

Useful
life of
Useful
life of
infrastructure
infrastructure
Kerb
Kerb
&&
Channel
Channel
(included
(included
in in
Roads)
Roads)

Depreciated
Depreciated
per unit
CostCost
per unit
Replacement
Replacement
CostCost

Useful
life of
Useful
life of
infrastructure
infrastructure

Increase
or decrease
in the
unit would
or decrease
in the cost
percost
unitper
would
- $120/m2Increase
$1.20$1.20
- $120/m2
in a significantly
lower
fair value.
in a significantly
higher higher
or lowerorfair
value.
($38.23) result result
($38.23)
Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
15 –years
100 yearsIncrease
15 – 100
result
in a significantly
higher
lower fair
wouldwould
result in
a significantly
higher or
lowerorfair
value.value.
Increase
or decrease
in the
unit would
or decrease
in the cost
percost
unitper
would
$10 -$10
$600- $600
/ lm / lmIncrease
in a significantly
lower
fair value.
result result
in a significantly
higher higher
or lowerorfair
value.
Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
25-100
25-100
years years Increase
result
in a significantly
higher
lower fair
wouldwould
result in
a significantly
higher or
lowerorfair
value.value.

Infrastructure
Infrastructure
Depreciated
Depreciated
Footpaths
per unit
Footpaths
CostCost
per unit
Replacement
Replacement
CostCost

Increase
or decrease
in the
unit would
or decrease
in the cost
percost
unitper
would
$12 -$12
$80-/ $80
m2 / m2 Increase
in a significantly
lower
fair value.
result result
in a significantly
higher higher
or lowerorfair
value.

Useful
life of
Useful
life of
infrastructure
infrastructure

Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
40 years Increase
40 years
result
in a significantly
higher
lower fair
wouldwould
result in
a significantly
higher or
lowerorfair
value.value.

Infrastructure
Infrastructure
Depreciated
Depreciated
Bridges
per unit
Bridges
CostCost
per unit
Replacement
Replacement
CostCost

Useful
life of
Useful
life of
infrastructure
infrastructure
Infrastructure
Infrastructure
Depreciated
Depreciated
Drainage
per unit
Drainage
CostCost
per unit
Replacement
Replacement
CostCost

Useful
life of
Useful
life of
infrastructure
infrastructure

Increase
or decrease
in the
unit would
or decrease
in the cost
percost
unitper
would
$1,300
– 2,000
/Increase
$1,300
– 2,000
/
in a significantly
lower
fair value.
result result
in a significantly
higher higher
or lowerorfair
value.
m2 m2
Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
130 years Increase
80 – 80
130–years
result
in a significantly
higher
lower fair
wouldwould
result in
a significantly
higher or
lowerorfair
value.value.
PipesPipes
- $12-- $12 $3,452
$3,452
/ lm / lm
Pits -Pits
$575- $575
$4,880
$4,880
ea ea
– 80 years
20 – 20
80 years

Increase
or decrease
in the
unit would
Increase
or decrease
in the cost
percost
unitper
would
in a significantly
lower
fair value.
result result
in a significantly
higher higher
or lowerorfair
value.
Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
Increase
or decrease
in the estimated
useful life
result
in a significantly
higher
lower fair
wouldwould
result in
a significantly
higher or
lowerorfair
value.value.
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Specialised Buildings

40,231,734

464,020

142,634

-

-

290,165

-

(996,395)

40,132,158

Total Land

14,318,376

27,098

2,699,493

-

431

-

(92,020)

22,830

(124,712)

(421,294)

13,730,709

-

-

-

-

-

(188,997)

2,510,496

Land improvements

-

-

(232,297)

1,354,946

Land under roads

-

-

-

68,883

-

(124,712)

-

899,596

22,830

-

-

8,896,788

$

$

$

Recreation grounds

1,576,609
10,634
Indigo
Shire
Council
Indigo
Shire
Council68,452
431
Notes
to
the
Financial
Report
for
the
year
ended
30
June
2014
Non-Specialised Land Notes to the
1,116,328
Financial- Report- for the year ended
30(92,020)
June 2014

Specialised Land
Property

8,857,494

16,464

-

-

-

$
$
$
$
$
Note 23
Property,
infrastructure,
plant
(continued)
Note
23 Property,
infrastructure,
plantand
and equipment
equipment
(continued)

$

1 July 2013 Additions
Assets
Revaluation held for sale Transfers
Disposals
Depreciation
30 June 2014
2014
amount
at
Contributed
from
Assets
amount
Reconciliation
of
the
carrying
amounts
of
each
class
of
assets
at
the
beginning
and
end
of
the
current
financial
year
are at
ReconciliationCarrying
of the carrying amounts of each class of assets at the
beginning
Asset Classes
Transfer
(to) / and end of the current financial year are
Carrying

set out
out below:
below:
set
set out below:
Carrying
Transfer (to) /
Carrying
Carrying
(to) /
Carrying
of theamount
carrying
each class of assets at Transfer
thefrom
beginning
at amounts of Contributed
Assets and end of the current financial year are
amount at

Asset Classes
Asset Classes
Reconciliation
2014
2014
Property

Note 23

amount at
Contributed
from Assets
amount at
1 July 2013 Additions
Assets
Revaluation held for sale Transfers
Disposals
Depreciation
30 June 2014
1 July 2013 Additions
Assets
Revaluation held for sale Transfers
Disposals
Depreciation
30 June 2014
Property, infrastructure,
plant
and
equipment
(continued)
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Property
Specialised Land
Specialised Land
Non-Specialised Land
Non-Specialised Land
Land under roads
Land under roads
Land improvements
Land improvements
Recreation grounds
Recreation grounds
Total Land
Total Land

8,857,494
16,464
8,857,494
16,464
1,116,328
1,116,328
68,452
68,452
1,576,609
10,634
1,576,609
10,634
2,699,493
2,699,493
14,318,376
27,098
14,318,376
27,098

431
431

Specialised Buildings
Specialised Buildings
Non-Specialised Buildings
Non-Specialised Buildings
Total buildings
Total buildings
Total Property
Total Property

40,231,734
464,020
40,231,734
464,020
601,102
601,102
40,832,836
464,020
40,832,836
464,020
55,151,212
491,118
55,151,212
491,118

142,634
142,634
142,634
142,634
143,065
143,065

-

-

Notes to the Financial Report for- the year
431
431
Indigo Shire Council
-

Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery & equip
1,928,063
882,654
Plant, machinery & equip
1,928,063
882,654
Leased plant & equipment
180,542
Leased plant & equipment
180,542
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
230,570
15,598
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
230,570
15,598
Computers & telecommunications
256,094
129,236
Computers & telecommunications
256,094
129,236
Library Books
62,274
89,923
Library Books
62,274
89,923
Street furniture
370,359
8,386
Street furniture
370,359
8,386
Playground equipment
245,689
37,901
Playground equipment
245,689
37,901
Total Plant and Equipment
3,273,591
1,163,698
Total Plant and Equipment
3,273,591 1,163,698
Artwork & Heritage Collection
3,217,050
Artwork & Heritage Collection
3,217,050
Infrastructure
Infrastructure
Roads
Roads
Footpaths
Footpaths
Bridges
Bridges
Drainage & Culverts
Drainage & Culverts
Total Infrastructure
Total Infrastructure
Works in Progress
Works in Progress
Buildings
Buildings
Bridges
Bridges
Roads
Roads
Other
Other
Total works in progress
Total works in progress
Total

Total

78

-

-

93,757,350
2,528,345
93,757,350 2,528,345
3,208,757
75,935
3,208,757
75,935
13,407,730
308,971
13,407,730
308,971
10,697,453
528,800
10,697,453
528,800
121,071,290
3,442,051
121,071,290 3,442,051

1,104,593
2,956,051
1,104,593 2,956,051
10,730
10,730
400,621
58,020
400,621
58,020
217,701
137,744
217,701
137,744
1,733,645
3,151,815
1,733,645 3,151,815
184,446,788
8,248,682
184,446,788 8,248,682

-

-

-

-

(92,020)
ended
30 June
(92,020)
(92,020)
(92,020)
-

-

-

-

-

73,501
73,501
16,800
16,800
67,156
67,156
157,457
157,457

1,090,260
1,090,260
1,090,260
1,090,260

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

300,522
300,522

1,090,260
1,090,260

22,830
8,896,788
22,830
8,896,788
(124,712)
899,596
2014 (124,712)
899,596
68,883
68,883
(232,297)
1,354,946
(232,297)
1,354,946
(188,997)
2,510,496
(188,997)
2,510,496
22,830
(124,712)
(421,294)
13,730,709
22,830
(124,712)
(421,294)
13,730,709

290,165
(996,395)
40,132,158
290,165
(996,395)
40,132,158
(7,888)
593,214
(7,888)
593,214
290,165
(1,004,283)
40,725,372
290,165
(1,004,283)
40,725,372
(92,020)
312,995
(124,712)
(1,425,577)
54,456,081
(92,020)
312,995
(124,712)
(1,425,577)
54,456,081
-

-

-

-

-

-

394,781
394,781
1,586
1,586
10,730
10,730
6,653
6,653
413,750
413,750

-

-

-

-

(312,995)
(312,995)
(10,730)
(10,730)
(394,781)
(394,781)
(8,239)
(8,239)
(726,745)
(726,745)
-

-

-

(92,020)
(92,020)

-

-

(114,363)
(457,083)
(114,363)
(457,083)
(154,111)
(26,431)
(154,111)
(26,431)
(62,282)
(62,282)
(109,212)
(109,212)
(13,523)
(13,523)
(22,488)
(22,488)
(91,711)
(91,711)
(268,474)
(782,730)
(268,474)
(782,730)
-

-

-

-

-

-

2,239,271
183,886
276,118
138,674
356,257
191,879
3,386,085
3,217,050

2,239,271
183,886
276,118
138,674
356,257
191,879
3,386,085
3,217,050

(2,462,552)
95,381,685
(2,462,552)
95,381,685
(137,909)
3,165,169
(137,909)
3,165,169
(165,673)
13,561,758
(165,673)
13,561,758
(148,810)
11,151,252
(148,810)
11,151,252
(2,914,944)
123,259,864
(2,914,944)
123,259,864

-

-

-

3,747,649
63,860
347,206
4,158,715

3,747,649
63,860
347,206
4,158,715

(393,186)
(5,123,251)
188,477,795
(393,186)
(5,123,251)
188,477,795
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Indigo
Shire
Council
Indigo
Shire
Council
NotesNotes
to the
Financial
Report
ended 30 June 2014
to the
Financial
Reportforforthetheyear
year ended 30 June 2014
Note 23
Property,
infrastructure,
plant
(continued)
Note
23 Property,
infrastructure,
plantand
andequipment
equipment (continued)
Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of each class of assets at the beginning and end of the current financial year are
Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of each class of assets at the beginning and end of the current financial year are
set out below:
set out below:Carrying
Asset Classes
Transfer (to) /
Carrying
2013

Property
Land

Asset Classes
2013
Property

Land
Land under roads
Land under roads
Land improvements
Land improvements
Recreation grounds
Recreation grounds
Total Land
Total Land
Buildings

Buildings
Heritage buildings
Heritage buildings
Total buildings
Total buildings
Total Property
Total Property

Transfer
/
Carrying amount at
amountCarrying
at
Contributed
from (to)
Assets
amount Additions
at
Contributed Revaluation held
from for
Assets
amount at
1 July 2012
Assets
sale Transfers
Disposals
Depreciation
30 June 2013
1 July 2012 Additions
Assets
Revaluation held for sale Transfers
Disposals
Depreciation
30 June 2013
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
10,084,262
10,084,262
65,185
65,185
1,808,905
1,808,905
2,837,165
43,509
2,837,165
43,509
14,795,517
43,509
14,795,517
43,509
31,147,055
377,446
31,147,055
377,446
10,209,070
103,957
10,209,070
103,957
41,356,125
481,403
41,356,125
481,403
56,151,642
524,912
56,151,642
524,912

Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery & equip
2,379,660
84,395
Plant, machinery & equip
2,379,660
84,395
Leased plant & equipment
206,972
Leased plant & equipment
206,972
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
293,595
7,030
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
293,595
7,030
Computers & telecommunications
361,652
32,014
Computers & telecommunications
361,652
32,014
Library Books
63,807
Library Books
63,807
Street furniture
387,529
5,049
Street furniture
387,529
5,049
Playground equipment
331,409
5,031
Playground equipment
331,409
5,031
Total Plant and Equipment
3,960,817
197,326
Total Plant and Equipment
3,960,817
197,326
Artwork & Heritage Collection
3,217,050
Artwork & Heritage Collection
3,217,050
Infrastructure
Infrastructure
Roads
Roads
Footpaths
Footpaths
Bridges
Bridges
Drainage & Culverts
Drainage & Culverts
Total Infrastructure
Total Infrastructure
Works in Progress
Works in Progress
Buildings
Buildings
Bridges
Bridges
Roads
Roads
Other
Other
Total works in progress
Total works in progress
Total

Total

-

-

91,283,696
3,952,216
91,283,696 3,952,216
2,960,848
78,398
2,960,848
78,398
13,542,420
29,688
13,542,420
29,688
10,511,999
887,741
10,511,999
887,741
118,298,963
4,948,043
118,298,963 4,948,043

474,821
629,772
474,821
629,772
10,730
10,730
400,621
400,621
130,414
183,896
130,414
183,896
605,235
1,225,019
605,235 1,225,019
182,233,707
6,895,300
182,233,707 6,895,300

3,267
3,267
3,267
3,267
-

-

3,267
3,267

-

-

-

-

-

-

105,983
105,983
104,543
104,543
48,515
48,515
259,041
259,041

716,751
716,751
198,640
198,640
(602,753)
(602,753)
312,638
312,638

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

262,308
262,308

312,638
312,638

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(110,440)
9,973,822
(110,440)
9,973,822
68,452
68,452
(232,296)
1,576,609
(232,296)
1,576,609
6,163
(187,344)
2,699,493
6,163
(187,344)
2,699,493
6,163
(110,440)
(419,640)
14,318,376
6,163
(110,440)
(419,640)
14,318,376
-

-

-

(870,228)
30,654,273
(870,228)
30,654,273
(134,464)
10,178,563
(134,464)
10,178,563
(1,004,692)
40,832,836
(1,004,692)
40,832,836
6,163
(110,440)
(1,424,332)
55,151,212
6,163
(110,440)
(1,424,332)
55,151,212
-

-

-

-

86,581
86,581
3,865
3,865
90,446
90,446

-

-

(96,609)
(96,609)
(96,609)
(96,609)
-

-

-

(56,765)
(479,227)
1,928,063
(56,765)
(479,227)
1,928,063
(26,430)
180,542
(26,430)
180,542
(70,055)
230,570
(70,055)
230,570
(137,572)
256,094
(137,572)
256,094
(1,533)
62,274
(1,533)
62,274
(22,219)
370,359
(22,219)
370,359
(90,751)
245,689
(90,751)
245,689
(56,765)
(827,787)
3,273,591
(56,765)
(827,787)
3,273,591
-

-

-

-

-

-

3,217,050

3,217,050

(2,387,877)
93,757,350
(2,387,877)
93,757,350
(137,537)
3,208,757
(137,537)
3,208,757
(164,378)
13,407,730
(164,378)
13,407,730
(148,049)
10,697,453
(148,049)
10,697,453
(2,837,841)
121,071,290
(2,837,841)
121,071,290

-

-

-

1,104,593
10,730
400,621
217,701
1,733,645

1,104,593
10,730
400,621
217,701
1,733,645

(167,205)
(5,089,960)
184,446,788
(167,205)
(5,089,960)
184,446,788
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Indigo Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2014
2013
$

2014
$

Note 24 Intangible assets
Licence Agreement
Less: Accumulated Amortisation

-

799,830
(799,830)
-

1,842,575
99,114
129,765
207,481
2,278,935

1,288,259
184,460
180,307
1,653,026

45,272
18,078
145,819
209,169

34,868
26,909
138,856
200,633

Note 25 Trade and other payables
Current
Trade creditors
Net GST payable
FSPL Creditors
Accrued expenses

Note 26 Trust funds and deposits
Refundable building deposits
Carlyle cemetery trust
Other refundable deposits

Note 27 Provisions
Annual
Leave
$

Long
Service Accumulated
Leave
Time
$
$

Personal
4/5
Leave Salary
Pool Module
$
$

Landfill
Restoration
$

Total
$

2014
Balance at beginning of the
financial year
Additional provisions
Amounts used
Balance at end of financial
year

799,692 1,364,988
927,145
305,003
(888,993) (256,515)

85,557
244,062
(240,848)

38,760
8,707
(9,319)

7,511
17,185
-

1,068,032
3,364,540
18,599
1,520,701
(20,283) (1,415,958)

837,844 1,413,476

88,771

38,148

24,696

1,066,348

2013
Balance at beginning of the
financial year
Additional provisions
Amounts used
Balance at end of financial
year

689,310 1,296,004
882,646
265,823
(772,264) (196,839)

63,039
249,503
(226,985)

10,062
35,672
(6,974)

7,511
-

1,074,935
3,133,350
1,441,155
(6,903) (1,209,965)

799,692 1,364,988

85,557

38,760

7,511

1,068,032

80

3,469,283

3,364,540
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Indigo Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 27 Provisions (continued)

2014
$

2013
$

571,286
247,358
88,771
38,148
945,563

545,223
238,873
85,557
38,760
908,413

266,558
847,051
1,113,609
2,059,172

254,469
896,272
1,150,741
2,059,154

319,067
24,696
343,763

229,843
7,511
237,354

(a) Employee benefits
Current provisions expected to be settled within 12 months
Annual Leave
Long Service Leave
Accumulated Time
Personal Leave Pool
Current provisions expected to be settled after 12 months
Annual Leave
Long Service Leave
Total current provision
Non-current
Long Service Leave
4/5 Employment Model

The following assumptions were adopted in measuring the present value of long service leave:
Weighted average increase in employee costs
Weighted average discount rates
Weighted average settlement period

4.50%
3.79%
12

4.44%
3.57%
12

(b) Land fill restoration
Under Council undertaking, Council is obligated to restore four landfill sites to a particular standard. All four landfill
sites have ceased operations a number of years ago and restoration work commenced in 2011/12 and is planned to be
complete by 2017/18. The provision for landfill restoration has been calculated based on the present value of the
expected cost of works to be undertaken. The expected cost of works has been estimated based on current
understanding of work required to reinstate the sites to a suitable standard and independent specialist advice.
Accordingly, the estimation of the provision required is dependent on the accuracy of the forecast timing of the work,
work required and related costs.
Council does not expect to receive reimbursement from a third party.
2014
$
Current
Non-current

220,000
846,348

1,066,348

2013
$
1,068,032
1,068,032
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Note 28 Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Current
Bank Loans – Secured
Non Current
Bank Loans – Secured
Total

2014
$

2013
$

396,262
396,262

382,010
382,010

2,916,963
2,916,963

2,313,225
2,313,225

3,313,225

2,695,235

The maturity profile for Council’s borrowings is:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

382,010
1,197,966
1,115,259

396,262
1,496,904
1,420,059

Finance Leases
Council had the following obligations under finance leases for the lease of
equipment (the sum of which is recognised as a liability after deduction of future
lease finance charges included in the obligation):
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
Minimum lease payments
Less: Future finance charges
Recognised in the balance sheet as:

-

49,462
620
50,082
(620)
49,462

Current
Leases

-

49,462

Non Current
Leases
Total

-

49,462

396,262
2,916,963
3,313,225

431,472
2,313,225
2,744,697

Aggregate carrying amount of interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Current
Non-current

Borrowings are secured by way of mortgages over the general rates of the Council.
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Note
Note 29
29 Reserves
Reserves

(a)
(a) Asset
Asset Revaluation
RevaluationReserve
Reserve

Balance
Balance
at at
ShareShare
of increment
of increment BalanceBalance
at end at end
beginning
beginning
of of Increment
Increment(decrement)
(decrement)
on revaluation
on revaluation
of reporting
of reporting
reporting
reporting
period
period(decrement)
(decrement)
by anby
associate
an associate
period period
$ $
$ $
$
$
$
$

2014
2014
Property
Property
Land
Land
Land
Land under
under roads
roads
Land
Land Improvements
Improvements
Buildings
Buildings
Heritage
Heritage buildings
buildings
Recreation
Recreation Reserves
Reserves
Plant
Plant & Equipment
Equipment
Playground
Playground Equipment
Equipment
Street
Street Furniture
Furniture
Infrastructure
Infrastructure
Roads
Roads
Bridges
Bridges
Footpaths
Footpaths and
andcycleways
cycleways
Drainage
Drainage
Total
Total Asset
Asset revaluation
revaluationreserves
reserves

2013
2013
Property
Property
Land
Land
Land
Land under
under roads
roads
Land
Land Improvements
Improvements
Buildings
Buildings
Heritage
Heritage buildings
buildings
Recreation
Recreation Reserves
Reserves
Plant
Plant & Equipment
Equipment
Playground
Playground Equipment
Equipment
Street
Street Furniture
Furniture
Infrastructure
Infrastructure
Roads
Roads
Bridges
Bridges
Footpaths
Footpaths and
andcycleways
cycleways
Drainage
Drainage
Total
Total Asset
Asset revaluation
revaluationreserves
reserves

6,615,429
6,615,429
- 216,683
216,683
17,986,947
17,986,947
6,409,405
6,409,405
480,295
480,295
31,708,759
31,708,759

-

-

-

-

6,615,429
6,615,429
216,683216,683
17,986,947
17,986,947
6,409,405
6,409,405
480,295480,295
31,708,759
31,708,759

489,448
489,448
28,638
28,638
518,086
518,086

-

-

-

-

489,448489,448
28,638 28,638
518,086518,086

54,517,995
54,517,995 1,090,260
1,090,260
7,447,822
7,447,822
1,078,182
1,078,182
807,530
807,530
63,851,529
63,851,529 1,090,260
1,090,260
96,078,374
96,078,374 1,090,260
1,090,260

-

-

55,608,255
55,608,255
7,447,822
7,447,822
1,078,182
1,078,182
807,530807,530
64,941,789
64,941,789
97,168,634
97,168,634

Balance
Balance
at at
Transfer
Transfer
fromfrom
beginning
beginning
of of
accumulated
accumulated
reporting
reporting
period
period
surplus
surplus
$ $
$ $

Transfer
Transfer
to
to BalanceBalance
at end at end
accumulated
accumulated of reporting
of reporting
surplus
surplus
period period
$
$
$
$

6,615,429
6,615,429
- 216,683
216,683
17,986,947
17,986,947
6,409,405
6,409,405
480,295
480,295
31,708,759
31,708,759

-

-

-

-

6,615,429
6,615,429
216,683216,683
17,986,947
17,986,947
6,409,405
6,409,405
480,295480,295
31,708,759
31,708,759

489,448
489,448
28,638
28,638
518,086
518,086

-

-

-

-

489,448489,448
28,638 28,638
518,086518,086

602,753
602,753
602,753
602,753
602,753
602,753

54,517,995
54,517,995
7,447,822
7,447,822
1,078,182
1,078,182
807,530807,530
63,851,529
63,851,529
96,078,374
96,078,374

53,801,244
53,801,244
7,447,822
7,447,822
879,542
879,542
1,410,283
1,410,283
63,538,891
63,538,891
95,765,736
95,765,736

716,751
716,751
198,640
198,640
915,391
915,391
915,391
915,391
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Note 29 Reserves (continued)

(b) Other Reserves

Balance at
beginning of
reporting period
$

Transfer from
accumulated
surplus
$

Transfer to
accumulated
surplus
$

Balance at end
of reporting
period
$

2014
Quarry Restoration Reserve
Property Sales Reserve
Resort and Recreation Reserve*
Buller Gas Reserve
Future DB Super calls
Total other Reserves

172,284
146,871
328,003
278,131
137,252
1,062,541

22,619
2,930
142,593
168,142

146,871
146,871

194,903
330,933
278,131
279,845
1,083,812

2013
Quarry Restoration Reserve
Landfill Rehabilitation Reserve
Property Sales Reserve
Resort and Recreation Reserve*
Plant Replacement Reserve
Buller Gas Reserve
Future DB Super calls
Total other Reserves

150,880
435,598
146,871
285,111
249,034
278,131
1,545,625

21,404
42,892
137,252
201,548

435,598
249,034
684,632

172,284
146,871
328,003
278,131
137,252
1,062,541

* Section 18, Subdivision Act 1988 requires developers to make open space contributions to Councils. These funds can only be used by Councils for
the development of open space assets.
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Note 30 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to
Surplus
Surplus
Contribution – Non-monetary assets
Depreciation and Amortisation
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables and Accruals
Increase/(Decrease) in Trust Funds
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (excluding Heritage & Community Loans)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Net Cash provided by / (used in) operating activities

Note 31 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents (see note 17)
Less bank overdraft

2013
$

2014
$

2,772,542

3,488,794

(300,522)
5,123,251
104,742
625,908
8,536
(1,017,759)
22,211
(253,163)
161,854

(262,308)
5,169,942
231,190
(2,894,738)
28,241
1,161,277
(21,445)
501,816
7,953

7,247,600

7,410,722

6,605,072
6,605,072

6,799,298
6,799,298

750,000
750,000

750,000
750,000

Note 32 Financing arrangements
Bank overdraft
Used facilities
Unused facilities

Note 33 Restricted assets
Council has cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) that are subject to restrictions. As
at the reporting date, Council had legislative restrictions to reserve funds
(Recreation Land Reserves).

Legislative Reserve Funds (note 29)
Unexpended Grants (note 5)
Trust Funds (note 26)

330,933
2,465,102
209,169
3,005,204
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Note 34 Superannuation
Indigo Shire Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the
Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and
defined benefit, each of which is funded differently. The defined benefit section provides lump sum benefits based on
years of service and final average salary. The defined contribution section receives fixed contributions from Indigo
Shire Council and the Indigo Shire Council’s legal or constructive obligation is limited to these contributions.
Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in Comprehensive Operating Statement when
they are made or due.
Indigo Shire Council also makes contributions to a number of other accumulation or defined contribution funds where
an employee has exercised their choice to do so. These other defined contribution funds also receive fixed contributions
from Indigo Shire Council and the Indigo Shire Council’s legal or constructive obligation is limited to these
contributions.

Accumulation
The Fund's accumulation category, Vision MySuper/Vision Super Saver and other accumulation funds where the
employee has exercised choice, receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer
contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2014, this was
9.25% required under Superannuation Guarantee legislation). Our commitment to defined contribution plans is limited
to making contributions in accordance with our minimum statutory requirements. No further liability accrues to the
employer as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net assets of the
Fund or the selected superannuation fund.
Effective from 1 July 2014, the Superannuation Guarantee contribution rate is legislated to increase to 9.5%, and will
progressively increase to 12% by 2019. Based on announcements included in the May 2014 Federal Budget, this
progressive increase to 12% will be delayed until 2022.

Defined Benefit
As provided under Paragraph 34 of AASB 119, Indigo Shire Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its
defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit
category is a multi-employer sponsored plan.
As a multi-employer sponsored plan, the Fund was established as a mutual scheme to allow for the mobility of the
workforce between the participating employers without attaching a specific liability to particular employees and their
current employer. Therefore, there is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the
participating employers as the defined benefit obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers
and the only time that the aggregate obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call is made. As a result, the
level of participation of Indigo Shire Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared with other
participating employers. While there is an agreed methodology to allocate any shortfalls identified by the Fund Actuary
for funding purposes, there is no agreed methodology to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between the
participating employers for accounting purposes. Therefore, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets
and costs between employers for the purposes of AASB 119.
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Note 34 Superannuation (continued)
Funding arrangements
Indigo Shire Council makes employer contributions to the defined benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by
the Trustee on the advice of the Fund's Actuary. The Fund’s employer funding arrangements comprise of three
components (which are detailed below) are:
1.

Regular contributions - which are ongoing contributions needed to fund the balance of benefits for current
members and pensioners;

2.

Funding calls – which are contributions in respect of each participating employer’s share of any funding
shortfalls that arise; and

3.

Retrenchment increments – which are additional contributions to cover the increase in liability arising from
retrenchments.

Indigo Shire Council is also required to make additional contributions to cover the contribution tax payable on the
contributions referred to above.
Employees are also required to makes member contributions to the Fund. As such, assets accumulate in the Fund to
meet member benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, as they accrue.

Employer contributions
Regular contributions
On the basis of the results of the most recent full actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund's Actuary as at 31
December 2011, Indigo Shire Council makes employer contributions to the Fund’s Defined Benefit category at rates
determined by the Fund’s Trustee. For the year ended 30 June 2014, this rate was 9.25% of members' salaries. This
rate increased to 9.5% on 1 July 2014 and is expected to increase in line with the required Superannuation
Guarantee contribution rate.
In addition, Indigo Shire Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of
retrenchment above the funded resignation or retirement benefit (the funded resignation or retirement benefit is
calculated as the VBI multiplied by the benefit).

Funding calls
The Fund is required to comply with the superannuation prudential standards. Under the superannuation prudential
standard SPS 160, the Fund is required to target full funding of its vested benefits. There may be circumstances
where:
•

a fund is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation (i.e. its vested benefit index (VBI)
is less than 100% at the date of the actuarial investigation); or

•

a fund’s VBI is below its shortfall limit at any time other than at the date of the actuarial investigations.

If either of the above occur, the fund has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the fund is required to put a
plan in place so that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall occurring. There may be
circumstances where the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) may approve a period longer than
three years.
The Fund monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shortfall limit at 97%.
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Note 34 Superannuation (continued)
In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the Fund’s
participating employers (including Indigo Shire Council) are required to make an employer contribution to cover the
shortfall. The methodology used to allocate the shortfall was agreed in 1997 to fairly and reasonably apportion the
shortfall between the participating employers.
Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on
the pre-1 July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund’s defined benefit category, together with
the employer’s payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been calculated.
The pre-1 July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund are based on:
•
•
•

The service periods of all active members split between the active members pre-1 July 1993 and post-30
June 1993 service period;
The service periods of all deferred members split between the deferred members pre-1 July 1993 and post30 June 1993 service period; and
The pensioner (including fixed term pension) liabilities which are allocated to the pre-1993 period.

The pre-1 July 1993 component of the shortfall is apportioned between the participating employers based on the
employer’s share of the total participating employer payroll at 30 June 1993.
The post-30 June 1993 component of the shortfall is apportioned between the participating employers based on the
employer’s share of the total participating employer payroll at the date the shortfall has been calculated.
Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund
includes lifetime pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up. In
the unlikely event that the Fund is wound up and there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be applied for the
benefit of the defined benefit employers where there are on-going defined benefit obligations. The surplus would be
transferred to the fund accepting those defined benefit obligations (including the lifetime pension obligations) of the
Fund.
In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be
transferred to that employer’s successor.
Differences between calculations
The Fund surplus or deficit (i.e. the difference between fund assets and liabilities) is calculated differently for
funding purposes (i.e. calculating required contributions), for the calculation of accrued benefits as required in AAS
25 and for the values needed for the AASB 119 disclosure in the Indigo Shire Council's financial statements. AAS
25 requires that the present value of the defined benefit liability be calculated based on benefits that have accrued in
respect of membership of the plan up to the measurement date, with no allowance for future benefits that may
accrue.

Retrenchment increments
During 2013-14, Indigo Shire Council was not required to make payments to the Fund in respect of retrenchment
increments ($Nil in 2012/13). Indigo Shire Council’s liability to the Fund as at 30 June 2014, for retrenchment
increments, accrued interest and tax is $nil ($nil in 2012/13).
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Shortfall amounts

The Local Authorities Superannuation Fund’s latest actuarial investigation as at 31 December 2011 identified an
unfunded liability of $406 million (excluding contributions tax) in the defined benefit category of which Indigo
Shire Council is a contributing employer.
Indigo Shire Council was made aware of the expected shortfall during the 2011/12 year and was informed of its
share of the shortfall on 2 August 2012. Indigo Shire Council has not been advised of any further adjustments.
Indigo Shire Council’s share of the shortfall amounted to $1,131,125 (excluding contributions tax) which was
accounted for in the 2011/12 Comprehensive Operating Statement within Employee Benefits and in the Balance
Sheet in Non-current Liabilities.
No further amount has been accounted for in the 2013/14 Comprehensive Operating Statement within Employee
Benefits (see Note 10) and in the Balance Sheet in Current Liabilities Provisions (see Note 27) ($nil in the 2012/13
Comprehensive Operating Statement with Employee Benefits and ($nil in the 2012/13 Balance Sheet in Current
Liabilities Provisions).
For the 2012/13 year, Indigo Shire Council received an early payment discount of $51,956 (including contribution
tax) which was accounted for in the 2012/13 Comprehensive Operating Statement within Employee Benefits.
The amount of the unpaid shortfall at 30 June 2014 is $nil ($nil for 2012/13).

Accrued benefits

The Fund's liability for accrued benefits was determined in the 31 December 2011 actuarial investigation pursuant to
the requirements of Australian Accounting Standard Board AAS25 follows:
31-Dec-11
$'000
Net Market Value of Assets

4,315,324

Accrued Benefits
(per accounting standards)

4,642,133

Difference between Assets and Accrued Benefits

(326,809)

Vested Benefits
(Minimum sum which must be paid to members when they leave the fund)

4,838,503

The financial assumptions used to calculate the Accrued Benefits for the defined benefit category of the Fund were:
Net Investment Return

7.50% p.a.

Salary Inflation

4.25% p.a.

Price Inflation

2.75% p.a.

The next full actuarial investigation of the Fund’s liability for accrued benefits will be based on the Fund’s position as
at 30 June 2014. The anticipated completion date of this actuarial investigation is 19 December 2014.
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Superannuation contributions
Contributions by Indigo Shire Council (excluding any unfunded liability payments) to the above superannuation plans
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 are detailed below:
Scheme

Type of scheme

Rate
9.25%

2014
$'000
$54,371

2013
$'000
$53,612

Vision Super

Defined benefits

Vision Super

Accumulation

9.25%

$401,428

$396,867

Various other
Superannuation Funds

Accumulation

9.25%

$306,919

$245,962

There were $56,005 contributions outstanding and no loans issued from or to the above schemes as at 30 June 2014.
The expected contributions to be paid to the defined benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2015
is $53,174.
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Note 35 Commitments

The Council has entered into the following commitments
2014

Operating
Recycling
Garbage Collection
Green waste collection
Street & Park Bins
Green Waste & Timber Mulching
Cleaning Contracts for Council Buildings
Meals for Delivery
Information Systems & Technology
Other
Total
Capital
Buildings
Roads
Other
Total

2013

Operating
Recycling
Garbage Collection
Hard & Green waste collection
Green Waste & Timber Mulching
Cleaning Contracts for Council Buildings
Meals for Delivery
Information Systems & Technology
Other
Total
Capital
Buildings
Roads
Plant
Other
Total

Not later
than 1 year
$

Later than
1 year and
not later
than 2 years
$

Later than 2
year and not
later than 5
years
$

Later than
5 years
$

Total
$

379,200
958,000
160,800
54,000
20,000
166,984
102,840
23,807
6,127
1,871,758

390,576
986,740
165,624
55,620
6,667
171,993
1,777,220

1,243,448
3,141,412
527,285
177,073
5,089,218

2,333,879
5,896,244
989,683
332,356
9,552,162

4,347,103
10,982,396
1,843,392
619,049
26,667
338,977
102,840
23,807
6,127
18,290,358

1,519,399
14,000
35,676
1,569,075
3,440,833

1,777,220

5,089,218

9,552,162

1,519,399
14,000
35,676
1,569,075
19,859,433

Not later
than 1 year
$

Later than
1 year and
not later
than 2 years
$

Later than 2
year and not
later than 5
years
$

Later than
5 years
$

Total
$

405,135
788,556
300,686
24,250
162,127
99,840
61,680
28,500
1,870,774

417,289
812,213
309,707
166,991
1,706,200

1,328,493
2,585,782
985,990
172,001
5,072,266

3,598,771
7,004,659
2,670,962
13,274,392

5,749,688
11,191,210
4,267,345
24,250
501,119
99,840
61,680
28,500
21,923,632

267,966
21,300
329,918
33,121
652,305
2,523,079

1,706,200

5,072,266

13,274,392

267,966
21,300
329,918
33,121
652,305
22,575,937
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Note 36 Operating lease commitments

2014
$

2013
$

At the reporting date, the Council had the following obligations under noncancellable operating leases :
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

99,346
148,063
247,409

160,072
82,720
242,791

Note 37 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liabilities
At balance date, Council has $38,000 issued in bank guarantees as a form of deposit for the completion of various
contracts undertaken by Indigo Shire Council.
Council operates a quarry for which Council will have to carry out site rehabilitation works in the future. At balance
date Council is unable to accurately assess the financial implications of such works.
Contingent assets
Developer contributions to be received in respect of estates currently under development remain unquantifiable at
balance date.
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Note 38 Financial instruments
(a) Accounting Policy, Terms and Conditions
Recognised Financial
Instruments

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Other debtors

Note

16

17

Accounting Policy

Terms and Conditions

Cash on hand and at bank and
money market call account are
valued at face value.

On Call deposits returned a floating
interest rate of 2.40% to 3.00%
(2.65% to 3.40% in 2012/13).

Interest revenues are recognised as
they accrue.

Fixed term deposits attracted
interest rates during the year
ranging between 3.00% and 4.20%
(3.65% and 4.70% in 2012/2013).

Receivables are carried at nominal
amounts due less any provision for
doubtful debts. A provision for
doubtful debts is recognised when
collection in full is no longer
probable.

General debtors are unsecured. No
interest rate is applied, however
legal costs can be incurred through
Council’s debt collection agency.

Collectability of overdue accounts
is assessed on an ongoing basis.
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables

25

Liabilities are recognised for
amounts to be paid in the future for
goods and services provided to
Council as at balance date whether
or not invoices have been received.

General Creditors are unsecured,
not subject to interest charges and
are normally settled within 30 days
of invoice receipt.

Interest bearing loans and
borrowings

28

Loans are carried at their principal
amounts, which represent the
present value of future cash flows
associated with servicing the debt.
Interest is accrued over the period it
becomes due and recognised as part
of payables.

Borrowings are secured by way of
mortgages over the general rates of
the Council.
The weighted average interest rate
on borrowings is 6.22% during
2013/2014 (6.21% in 2012/2013)..

Finance leases are accounted for at
their principal amount with the
lease payments discounted to
present value using the interest rates
implicit in the leases.

At balance date, Council had no
remaining finance leases with the
latest finance lease ending in June
2014.

Bank overdraft

28

The weighted average rate implicit
in the leases was 2.31% (2.31% in
2012/2013).

Overdrafts are recognised at the The overdraft is subject to annual
principal amount. Interest is review. It is secured by a mortgage
charged as an expense as it accrues. over Council's general rates and is
repayable on demand.
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b) Interest Rate Risk
The exposure to interest rate risk and the effective interest rates of financial assets and financial liabilities, both
recognised and unrecognised, at balance date are as follows:

2014

Fixed Interest Maturing In
Total

Over 1
year to 5
years
$

Over 5 years

1,602,212

5,000,000
20,852

5,020,852

21,893

-

2,860
7,080
1,758,548

2.57%

3.49%

3.48%

-

-

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Total Financial Liabilities

-

396,262

1,496,904

1,420,059

2,278,935
209,169

1,420,059

2,488,104

Weighted average interest rate

-

6.22%

6.10%

5.61%

-

1,602,212

4,624,590

(1,475,011)

(1,420,059)

(719,616)

Floating
Interest
Rate
$

1 year or
less

1,796,448
-

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Total Financial Assets
Weighted average interest rate

Net Financial Assets/(Liabilities)

2013

Floating
Interest
Rate
$

1 year or
less

1,602,212
-

$

-

396,262

$

21,893

1,496,904

-

Non
Interest
Bearing
$

$

1,768,488

-

1,796,448

5,000,000
17,489

5,017,489

32,251

-

2,850
7,080
1,620,285

0.83%

3.98%

3.48%

-

-

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Total Financial Liabilities

-

431,473

1,197,966

1,115,259

1,653,026
200,633

1,115,259

1,853,659

Weighted average interest rate

-

5.96%

6.41%

5.95%

-

1,796,448

4,586,016

(1,165,715)

(1,115,259)

(223,444)

Net Financial Assets/(Liabilities)

94

2,278,935
209,169
3,313,225

5,801,329

2,612,116

Total

Over 5 years

Weighted average interest rate

8,413,445

Fixed Interest Maturing In
Over 1
year to 5
years
$

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Total Financial Assets

6,605,072
7,080
1,801,293

$

-

431,473

32,251

1,197,966

$

-

Non
Interest
Bearing
$

$

1,630,215

-

6,799,298
7,080
1,670,025

8,476,403

1,653,026
200,633
2,744,698

4,598,357

3,878,046
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Note 38 Financial instruments (continued)
c) Net Fair Value
The aggregate net fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, both recognised and unrecognised, at balance
date are as follows:
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings
Total Financial Liabilities

2014
Carrying
Net Fair
Amount
Value
$
$
6,605,072
6,605,072
7,080
7,080
1,801,293
1,801,293
8,413,445
8,413,445

2013
Carrying
Amount
$
6,799,298
7,080
1,670,025
8,476,403

Net Fair
Value
$
6,799,298
7,080
1,670,025
8,476,403

2014
Carrying
Net Fair
Amount
Value
$
$
2,278,935
2,278,935
209,169
209,169

2013
Carrying
Amount
$
1,653,026
200,633

Net Fair
Value
$
1,653,026
200,633

3,313,225
5,801,329

3,313,225
5,801,329

2,744,698
4,598,357

2,744,698
4,598,357

d) Credit Risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial asset is
represented by the carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the Balance Sheet.
(e) Risks and Mitigation

The risks associated with our main financial instruments and our policies for minimising these risks are detailed below.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Council's exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with only
insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk. Components of market risk to
which we are exposed are discussed below.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument
will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial assets and
liabilities that we use. Non derivative interest bearing assets are predominantly short term liquid assets. Our interest rate
liability risk arises primarily from long term loans and borrowings at fixed rates which exposes us to fair value interest
rate risk.
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Note 38 Financial instruments (continued)
(e) Risks and Mitigation (continued)
Our loan borrowings are sourced from major Australian banks by a tender process. Finance leases are sourced from
major Australian financial institutions. Overdrafts are arranged with major Australian banks. We manage interest rate
risk on our net debt portfolio by:
- ensuring access to diverse sources of funding;
- reducing risks of refinancing by managing in accordance with target maturity profiles; and
- setting prudential limits on interest repayments as a percentage of rate revenue.
We manage the interest rate exposure on our net debt portfolio by appropriate budgeting strategies and obtaining
approval for borrowings from the Australian Loan Council each year.
Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1989. We
manage interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:
- conformity with State and Federal regulations and standards;
- capital protection;
- appropriate liquidity;
- diversification by credit rating, financial institution and investment product;
- monitoring of return on investment; and
- benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.
Maturity will be staggered to provide for interest rate variations and to minimise interest rate risk.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause us
to make a financial loss. We have exposure to credit risk on all financial assets included in our balance sheet. To help
manage this risk:
- we have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities we deal with;
- we may require collateral where appropriate; and
- we only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in our
investment policy.
Trade and other receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the consumer, business and
government sectors. Credit risk associated with the Council's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is the
Victorian Government. Apart from the Victorian Government we do not have any significant credit risk exposure to a
single customer or groups of customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of our
customers and, where appropriate, an allowance for doubtful debts is raised.
We may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when we
provide a guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 39.

Movement in Provisions for Doubtful Debts
Balance at the beginning of the year
New Provisions recognised during the year
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible
Amounts provided for but recovered during the year
Balance at end of year

2014
$

2013
$

167,950
10,139
(153,981)

166,514
1,436
-

24,108

167,950

Ageing of individually impaired Trade and Other Receivables
Council do not have any individually impaired Trade and Other Receivables.
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Note 38 Financial instruments (continued)
(e) Risks and Mitigation (continued)

Ageing of Trade and Other Receivables
At balance date other debtors representing financial assets were past due but not impaired. These amounts relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing of the Council's Trade &
Other Receivables was:

Current (not yet due)
Past due by up to 30 days
Past due between 31 and 180 days
Past due between 181 and 365 days
Past due by more than 1 year
Total Trade & Other Receivables

2014
$

2013
$

870,197
1,058,702
273,565
1,038,623
66,921
3,308,008

1,474,179
169,645
528,425
124,994
2,297,243

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of our operational liquidity requirements:
- we will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction on the date;
- we will be forced to sell financial assets at a value which is less than what they are worth; or
- we may be unable to settle or recover financial assets at all.
To help reduce these risks we:
- have a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained;
- have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;
- have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid
instruments;
- monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and
- set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal
repayments to rate revenue.
The Councils exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior period’s data and current assessment of
risk.
The table below lists the contractual maturities for Financial Liabilities
2014

6 mths
Or less
$

6-12
Months
$

1-2
Years
$

2-5
Years
$

>5
years
$

Contracted
Cash Flow
$

Trade & other
payables
2,278,935
2,278,935
Trust funds &
deposits
150,602
58,567
209,169
Interest-bearing
loans & borrowings
198,131
198,131
430,114
1,066,790
1,420,059
3,313,225
Total financial
liabilities
2,627,668
256,698
430,114
1,066,790
1,420,059
5,801,329
These amounts represent undiscounted gross payments including both principal and interest amounts.
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Amount
$
2,278,935
209,169
3,313,225
5,801,329
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Note 38 Financial instruments (continued)
(e) Risks and Mitigation (continued)
Liquidity Risk (continued)
2013
6 mths
Or less
$
Trade & other
payables
1,653,026
Trust funds &
deposits
144,456
Interest-bearing
loans & borrowings
215,736
Total financial
liabilities
2,013,218

6-12
Months
$

1-2
Years
$

2-5
Years
$

>5
Years
$

Contracted
Cash Flow
$

Carrying
Amount
$

-

-

-

-

1,653,026

1,653,026

56,177

-

-

-

200,633

200,633

215,736

318,683

879,283

1,115,259

2,744,697

2,744,697

271,913

318,683

879,283

1,115,259

4,598,356

4,598,356

(f) Sensitivity disclosure analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and
experience of the financial markets, the Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the
next 12 months (base rates are sourced from Reserve Bank of Australia):
A parallel shift of +1% and -2% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 4.4%.
The table below discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instruments held
by the Council at year end, if the above movements were to occur.
Interest rate risk
Market risk exposure

2014

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Carrying
amount
subject to
interest

-2%
-200

1%
Basis
points

+100

Basis
points

Profit

Equity

6,605,072

(132,101)

(132,101)

66,051

66,051

3,313,225

66,265

66,265

(33,132)

(33,132)

$

$

$

Profit

Equity

$

$

Financial liabilities:
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Interest rate risk
Market risk exposure

2013

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Carrying
amount
subject to
interest

-2%
-200

+1%
Basis
points

+100

Profit

Equity

6,799,298

(135,986)

(135,986)

67,993

67,993

2,744,698

54,894

54,894

(27,447)

(27,447)

$

$

$

Profit

Basis
points

$

Equity
$

Financial liabilities:
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
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Note 38 Financial instruments (continued)
(g) Fair Value Hierarchy
All financial assets carried at fair value are measured at quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Note 39 Auditors remuneration

2014
$

Audit fee to conduct external audit – Victorian Auditor General
Internal Audit fees – Johnson’s MME
Other

2013
$

33,000
26,482
3,250
62,732

32,200
26,860
3,150
62,210

Note 40 Events occurring after balance date
No material events have occurred post balance date

Note 41 Related party transactions
(i)

Names of persons holding the position of a Responsible Person at the Council at any time during the year
Councillors
Barbara Murdoch
Bernard Gaffney
Peter Croucher
Don Chambers
Jenny O’Connor
James Trenery
Roberta Horne

(Mayor 1/7/13 to 25/11/13 - Councillor 26/11/13 to 30/06/14)
(Councillor 1/7/13 to 25/11/13 - Mayor 26/11/13 to 30/07/14)
Councillor (1/7/13 to 30/06/14)
Councillor (1/7/13 to 30/06/14)
Councillor (1/7/13 to 30/06/14)
Councillor (1/7/13 to 30/06/14)
Councillor (1/7/13 to 30/06/14)

Chief Executive Officer Brendan McGrath (01/07/13 – 29/01/14)
Acting Chief Executive Officer Alan Clark (30/01/14 – 28/02/14)
Acting Chief Executive Officer Greg Pinkerton (01/03/14 – 28/03/14 and 05/04/14 – 01/06/14)
Acting Chief Executive Officer Mark Florence (29/03/14 – 04/04/14
Chief Executive Officer Gerry Smith (02/06/14 – 30/06/14)
(ii)

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
Income range

$1
$10,000 $20,000 $30,000 $40,000 $50,000 $160,000 $210,000 -

$9,999
$19,999
$29,999
$39,000
$49,999
$59,999
$169,999
$219,999

Total remuneration for the reporting year for Responsible
Persons included above amounted to:
(iii)

2014
No.

2013
No.

1
1
6
1
1
1
1
12

3
4
3
1
1
12

$ 463,518

$ 423,732

No retirement benefits have been made during the year to a Responsible Person (2012/13 nil).
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Note 41 Related party transactions (continued)
(iv)

No loans have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Council to a Responsible Person during the reporting
year (2012/13 nil).

(v)

Other Transactions
No transactions other than remuneration payments or the reimbursement of approved expenses were entered
into by Council with Responsible Persons, or related parties of such Responsible Persons during the
reporting year (2012/13 nil).

(vi)

Senior Officers Remuneration
A Senior Officer other than a Responsible Person, is an officer of Council who has management
responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer or whose total annual remuneration exceeds
$133,000.
The number of senior officers, other than the Responsible Persons, are shown below in their relevant income
bands:

< $133,000
$133,000 $140,000 $150,000 $160,000 -

$139,999
$149,999
$159,999
$169,999

Total remuneration for the reporting period for Senior
Officers included above, amounted to:

2014
No.

2013
No.

5
1
1
1
8

2
2
1
5

$ 977,095

$ 710,120

Note 42 Joint venture information
Council is not involved in any joint ventures
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ASSETS ATTRIBUTED TO
FUNCTIONS/ACTIVITIES

PROFIT/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR
449,831

(1,130,595)

1,165,540

34,945

Total

EXPENSES

397,227

10,806,504

1,615,904

12,422,408

1,315,375
11,107,033

438,645

5,891,819

(1,789,189)

7,975,421

6,186,232

30,612

1,183,037

1,054,786
5,131,446

30,612

(1,152,425)

933,289

(1,434,552)

3,282,462

1,847,910

1,235,547
612,363

5,745,323

(722,938)

7,591,799

6,868,861

1,784,881
5,083,980

473,697

(815,426)

1,728,156

912,730

81,131
831,599

461,919

(1,004,146)

1,865,885

861,739

120,549
741,190

Planning & Sustainable
Communities
2013
2014
$
$

190,636,168

497,866

6,112,262

6,610,128

5,814,494
795,634

185,896,119

(986,090)

6,306,909

5,320,819

4,501,785
819,034

Assets & Infrastructure
2013
2014
$
$

910,084

(1,409,521)

3,058,300

1,648,779

1,127,648
521,131

Community Planning
2013
2014
$
$

Civil Operations
2013
2014
$
$

387,350

11,967,334

1,370,064

13,337,398

2,872,158
10,465,240

Finance & IT
2013
2014
$
$

Customer Service & Admin
Support
2013
2014
$
$

501,422

(1,376,238)

34,945

514,208

(1,411,700)

1,781,500

405,262

66,300
338,962

INCOME
Grants
Other

ASSETS ATTRIBUTED TO
FUNCTIONS/ACTIVITIES

PROFIT/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR

1,903,424

491,724

TOTAL

EXPENSES

66,650
425,074

INCOME
Grants
Other

Tourism & Economic
Development
2013
2014
$
$

Note 43 Income, expenses and assets by function/activity

Indigo Shire Council
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199,703,614

2,772,542

25,829,036

28,601,578

9,567,983
19,033,595

3,488,794

25,058,126

28,546,920

10,473,321
18,073,599

2013
$

397,246

(1,827,182)

1,900,632

73,450

73,450

2013
$

194,738,108

Total
2014
$

407,375

(1,950,366)

2,045,867

95,501

95,501

Governance
2014
$

Indigo Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2014
Note 43 Income, expenses and assets by function/activity (continued)
The activities of the Council are categorised into the following broad functions:
Tourism & Economic Development
This department has a number of roles including the promotion and marketing of tourism and events, management of
the historic precinct and Burke Museum and the development of business for the economic advancement within the
Shire.
Civil Operations
Civil Operation’s principal responsibility is the construction and maintenance of Council and main roads and associated
infrastructure within the municipality. Roles also include maintenance of parks, gardens, waste collection, refuse sites
depots, and management of plant & equipment. The Civil Operation group are also responsible for the management
and running of a major external service contract known as Buller Gas.
Community Planning
Provides a wide range of services to support the aged, disabled, families, mothers & infants and youth. The department
provides operation and maintenance of libraries, senior citizens’ and maternal & child health centres, and vacation care,
meals on wheels, community meals, community transport, home and community care services and assistance to other
voluntary services. Also included is the maintenance of sporting and playground facilities as well as all swimming
pools within the Shire.
Customer Service and Administration Support
This department administers citizen service centres, cemeteries, Council chambers, general administration, records
management and lease services.
Governance
The Governance department is responsible for corporate planning and annual reporting, including Council agenda and
minute preparation, provision of advocacy, elections, civic functions, general public relations and support to the Mayor
and Councillors. This department is also responsible for human resource management, risk management including
OH&S, statutory compliance and insurance.
Planning & Sustainable Communities
The department administers town planning and heritage issues. Also included within this department are responsibility
for carrying out of conservation and environmental activities, building control, environmental health and local law
enforcement.
Finance & IT
This department provides financial, statutory and management reporting functions to Council and external parties,
administers rates, payroll and expenditure services. The department is also responsible management and delivery of all
internal IT Services.
Assets & Infrastructure
This department is responsible for the administration of Council buildings, vehicles and other assets. This department
also overviews Council’s annual capital works program.
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Note 44 Financial Ratios (performance indicators)
(a) Debt servicing ratio

2014
$

2014
%

2013
$

2013
%

2012
$

2012
%

(to identify capacity of a Council to
service its outstanding debt)
Debt servicing cost
Total revenue

157,293
28,601,578

= 0.55%

140,745
28,546,920

= 0.49%

126,891
31,720,552

= 0.40%

11,362,496
31,720,552

= 35.8%

10,090,947
54,735,762

= 18.44%

Debt servicing costs refer to the payment of interest on loans
borrowings, finance leases and bank overdraft.
The ratio expresses the amount of interest paid as a percentage
of Council’s total revenue.
(b) Revenue ratio
(to identify Council’s dependence
on non-rate income)
Rate revenue
Total revenue

12,943,925 = 45.3%
28,601,578

12,052,985 = 42.2%
28,546,920

The level of Council’s reliance on rate revenue is determined by
assessing rate revenue as a proportion of the total revenue of Council.
(c) Debt exposure ratio
(to identify a Council’s exposure to
debt)
Total indebtedness
Total realisable assets

9,270,612 = 17.32%
53,512,604

7,962,896 = 14.85%
53,626,958

For the purpose of the calculation of financial ratios, realisable assets are those assets which can be sold and which are
not subject to any restriction on realisation or use. Any liability represented by a restricted asset is excluded from total
indebtedness.
The following assets are excluded from total assets when calculating Councils realisable assets:
Land – other controlled; buildings on other controlled land; restricted assets; heritage assets; roads and lanes; footpaths;
kerb and channel; drains and bridges.
The ratio enables assessment of Council’s solvency and exposure to debt. Total indebtedness refers to the total
liabilities of Council. Total liabilities are compared to total realisable assets which are all Council assets not subject to
any restriction and are able to be realised. The ratio expresses the percentage of total liabilities for each dollar of
realisable assets.
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Note 44 Financial Ratios (performance indicators) (continued)
(d) Working capital ratio

2014
$

2014
%

2013
$

2013
%

2012
$

2012
%

(to assess a Council’s ability to meet
its current commitments)
Current assets
Current liabilities

11,204,988 = 217%
5,163,538

10,043,631 = 231%
4,344,285

10,480,248
5,805,210

= 181%

10,043,631 = 313%
3,209,140

10,480,248
4,718,175

= 222%

This ratio expresses the level of current assets the Council has
available to meet its current liabilities.
(e) Adjusted working capital ratio
(to assess a Council’s ability to meet
its current commitments)
Current assets
Current liabilities

11,204,988 = 275%
4,069,129

This ratio expresses the level of current assets the Council has available to meet its current liabilities. Current liabilities
have been reduced to reflect the long service leave that is shown as a current liability because Council does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, but is not likely to
fall due within 12 months after the end of the end of the period.
(f ) Debt commitment ratio
(to identify a Council’s debt
redemption strategy)
Debt servicing and redemption costs
588,766
Rate revenue
12,943,925

= 4.55%

633,489
12,052,985

= 5.26%

585,731
11,362,496

= 5.15%

The strategy involves the payment of loan principal and interest, finance lease principal and interest. The ratio expresses
the percentage of rate revenue utilised to pay interest and redeem debt principal.
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Note 45 Capital expenditure
2014
$

2013
$

Roads
Drains
Open space
Land & buildings
Plant, equipment & other

2,971,273
627,296
21,520
3,464,316
1,164,277

4,473,239
1,070,051
43,509
1,111,174
197,326

Total capital works

8,248,682

6,895,299

3,883,002
4,099,996
265,684

4,967,944
1,029,731
897,624

8,248,682

6,895,299

8,248,682

6,895,299

300,522
(92,020)
1,090,260
(5,123,251)
(393,187)
1

262,308
312,638
(5,089,960)
(167,205)
1

4,031,007

2,213,081

Note
Capital expenditure area

Represented by:
Renewal
Upgrade / Expansion
New
Total capital works

(a)
(b) & (c)
(d)

Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure movement
The movement between the previous year and the current year
in property, plant and equipment, infrastructure as shown in the
Balance Sheet links to the net of the following items:
Total capital works
Contributions – non-monetary assets
Gifted assets
Assets transferred (to) / from Non-current assets held for sale
Asset revaluation movement
Depreciation / amortisation (excluding Buller Gas amortisation)
Written down value of assets sold / disposed
Rounding
Total movement in property, plant & equipment, infrastructure
(a) Asset renewal expenditure
Expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset, which returns the service capability of the asset up to
that which it originally had. Asset renewal expenditure reinstates existing assets, it has no impact on revenue, but may
reduce future operating and maintenance expenditure if completed at the optimum time.
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expenditure(continued)
(continued)
(b)
(b) Asset
Assetupgrade
upgradeexpenditure
expenditure
Expenditure
Expenditurewhich
whichenhances
enhancesananexisting
existing
asset
asset
to provide
to provide
a higher
a higher
levellevel
of service
of service
or thatorwill
thatincrease
will increase
the lifethe
of life
the of the
asset
asset beyond
beyond that
thatwhich
whichit itoriginally
originallyhad.
had.
Asset
Asset
upgrade
upgrade
expenditure
expenditure
is discretional
is discretional
and often
and often
does not
doesresult
not in
result in
additional
additionalrevenue
revenueunless
unlessdirect
direct
user
user
charges
charges
apply.
apply.
It will
It will
increase
increase
operating
operating
and maintenance
and maintenance
expenditure
expenditure
in the future
in the future
because
becauseof
ofthe
theincrease
increaseininthethecouncil's
council's
asset
asset
base.
base.
(c)
(c) Asset
Assetexpansion
expansionexpenditure
expenditure
Expenditure
Expenditure that
thatextends
extendsthethecapacity
capacity
of of
an an
existing
existing
assetasset
to provide
to provide
benefits,
benefits,
at theatsame
the same
standard
standard
as is currently
as is currently
enjoyed
enjoyed by
by existing
existingbeneficiaries,
beneficiaries,to to
new
new
users.
users.
It isIt discretionary
is discretionary
expenditure
expenditure
whichwhich
increases
increases
future future
operating
operating
and and
maintenance
maintenancecosts,
costs,because
becauseit itincreases
increases
council's
council's
asset
asset
base,
base,
but but
maymay
be associated
be associated
with additional
with additional
revenue
revenue
from the
from the
new
new user
usergroup.
group.
(d)
(d) New
Newasset
assetexpenditure
expenditure
exist. exist.
New asset
Newexpenditure
asset expenditure
does notdoes
havenot have
Expenditure
Expenditurewhich
whichcreates
createsa new
a new
asset
asset
thatthat
provides
provides
a new
a new
service
service
that that
did not
didpreviously
not previously
any
any element
elementofofrenewal,
renewal,expansion
expansion
or or
upgrade
upgrade
of existing
of existing
assets.
assets.
NewNew
capital
capital
expenditure
expenditure
may ormay
mayornot
may
result
not in
result
additional
in additional
revenuerevenue
for
for council
counciland
andwill
willresult
resultininanan
additional
additional
burden
burden
for for
future
future
operation,
operation,
maintenance
maintenance
and capital
and capital
renewal.
renewal.

Note
Note 46
46Special
Specialcommittees
committeesand
and
other
other
activities
activities
Council
Council have
have aa number
numberofofSection
Section8686
special
special
committees
committees
or committees
or committees
of management
of management
who are
whoresponsible
are responsible
for
for
managing
managingcouncil
councilassets.
assets.These
These
committees
committees
include:
include:
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••

Atauro
AtauroIsland
IslandFriendship
Friendship
Committee
Committee

Baarmutha
BaarmuthaPart
PartCommittee
Committee
of of
Management
Management

Beechworth
BeechworthDistrict
DistrictMeals
Meals
onon
Wheels
Wheels
Volunteer
Volunteer
Delivery
Delivery
Committee
Committee

Beechworth
BeechworthMemorial
Memorial
Hall
Hall
Committee
Committee
of Management
of Management
Chiltern
ChilternAthenaeum
AthenaeumTrust
Trust
Committee
Committee

Chiltern
ChilternCommunity
CommunityCentre
Centre
Committee
Committee
of Management
of Management
Chiltern
ChilternGoods
GoodsShed
ShedCommittee
Committee
of Management
of Management

Chiltern
ChilternMemorial
MemorialHall
Hall
Committee
Committee
of Management
of Management
Coulston
CoulstonPark
ParkCommittee
Committee
of of
Management
Management
Lake
LakeSambell
SambellCommittee
Committee
of of
Management
Management

Rutherglen
RutherglenGold
GoldBattery
Battery
Committee
Committee
of Management
of Management
Rutherglen
RutherglenWine
WineCentre
Centre
Board
Board

Stanley
StanleySoldiers
SoldiersMemorial
Memorial
Hall
Hall
& Athenaeum
& Athenaeum
Committee
Committee
of Management
of Management
Wooragee
WoorageeCommunity
Community
Centre
Centre
Committee
Committee
of Management
of Management

Yackandandah
YackandandahPublic
Public
Hall
Hall
&&
Courthouse
Courthouse
Committee
Committee
of Management
of Management
Yackandandah
YackandandahSports
Sports
Park
Park
Committee
Committee
of Management
of Management

Murray
MurraytotoMountains
MountainsRail
RailTrail
Trail
Management
Management
Committee
Committee
– Combined
– Combined
with with
AlpineAlpine
Shire Shire
and Wangaratta
and Wangaratta
Councils.
Councils.
For
Formateriality
materialityreasons
reasonsthethe
assets
assets
andand
liabilities
liabilities
of these
of these
committees
committees
have have
not been
not included
been included
in theseinfinancial
these financial
statements
statements
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Indigo Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2014
Note 46 Special committees and other activities (continued)
In addition to the above special committees, Council also has the following seven advisory committees established
under section 3F of the Local Government Act. None of the following committees directly manage assets, income or
expenditure.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Burke Museum & Historic Precinct Advisory Committee
Indigo Shire Community Grants & Awards Advisory Committee
Indigo Shire Community Access Advisory Committee
Indigo Environment Advisory Committee
Indigo Shire Finance Advisory Committee
Indigo Economic Development & Tourism Advisory Committee
Indigo Shire Heritage Advisory Committee
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PO Box 28, Beechworth 3747
Phone 03 5728 8000 | Local Call 1300 365 003
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